Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting
Agenda

January 11, 2016

Meeting starts: 6:30 PM
Location: Readfield Town Office - Giles Hall
Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Meeting - 10 minutes
16-068 - Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of December 28, 2015 - 5 minutes
16-069 - Warrant: #28 & #29 - 5 minutes
Communications - 45 minutes
Select Board communications - 15 minutes
Town Manager - 10 minutes
Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments - 5 minutes
- Cemetery Committee minutes of November 16, 2015
Public Communication - Members of the public may address the Select Board on any topic — 15 minutes
Appointments / Reappointments & Resignations: - 5 minutes
16-070 - Accept the resignation of John Stanley from the Roads Committee
16-071 - Appoint Hannah Flannery to the Recreation Board of Directors
16-072 - Appoint Romaine Turyn to the Age Friendly Community ad-hoc committee
Unfinished Business - 45 minutes
16-060 - 2nd reading of the revised Board Roles and Responsibilities Policy - 5 minutes
16-062 - Discussion of Secret Ballot Review Process - 25 minutes
16-066 - Consider a Consent Agreement for 1149 Main Street - 10 minutes
New Business - 40 minutes
16-073 - 1* reading of an amended Giles Hall Use Policy - 10 minutes
16-074 - Review of Comprehensive Plan & checklist - 10 minutes
16-075 - Consideration of Library Building Committee status & directives - 5 minutes
16-076 - 1* draft of the budget presented - 10 minutes
16-077 - Other - 5 minutes
Future Agenda Items - 5 minutes
As identified in Appendix A
Other
Adjournment




Appendix A

Future Agenda Items

Next Meeting:
1% reading of the revised FOAA policy

1% reading of the revised Personnel Policy

1-Ton truck repair quotes

2% draft of the budget presented

Review of Transfer Station Commercial Haulers Permit Applications

Future Meetings:

1st Reading of amended Conflict of Interest & Recall Process Ordinance
Appeal / Hearing process workshop

Establish staggered terms for the Readfield Solid Waste and Recycling Committee
Revision to SWRC Interlocal Agreement

Cemetery Mowing RFP

Brush Grinding RFP

Snow Plowing RFP

Striping RFP

Website Committee

Technology Plan

Potential Parks / Town Property Committee




Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — December 28, 2015 — Unapproved

Select Board Members Present: Valarie Pomerlean, Thomas Dunham, Christine Sammons, Bruce Bourgoine,
and Allen Curtis

Others Attending: Eric Dyer (Town Manager), Kristin Parks (Board Secretary), William Starret (Channel 7),
Steve Vose, Catherine Bruce, Deb Doten

Ms. Pomerleau called the mecting to order at 6:34 pm followed by The Pledge of Allegiance.

Regular Meeting

o 16-056 - Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of December 14, 2015
» Motion made by Mrs. Sammons to approve the minutes of the December 14, 2015 meeting as
amended, second by Mr. Curtis. Vote 5 to 0 in favor.

o 16-057- Warrant: #27 & #28
» Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine to approve Warrant #27 & #28 in the amount of $52,857.96,
second by Mr. Dunham. Discussion: Since signing of both parties of the contract that IPP is no
longer towns responsibility and if the employees wished to keep it then they would pay for it
themselves. Mr. Dyer to look into this. Discussion on demo tipping and how things are coming
along and the cost structure. Winthrop dispatching, payments are made twice a year. Vote 5 to 0
in favor.

Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine to move items 16-059 and 16-066 up on the agenda, no second.
Vote 5 to 0 in favor.

¢ 16-059 — Presentation by Steve Vose of Maranacook Adult Education
» Steve Vose, Maranacook Adult Education Director talked about the GED program, College
Transition Program, Job Training Programs and classes offered through the adult education
program and the importance for the students and impact on the community. They recently took
over the Senior Caf¢ offered at Maranacook Middle School. Steve Vose asked the Select Board
if they thought of other areas that the Adult Education Program could offer or consider.

e 16-066 — Consider a Consent Agreement for 1149 Main Street

» Review by Mr. Dyer of the Administrative Consent Agreement between the Town of Readfield
and Property Owner. Copy of consent agreement given to Catherine Bruce for review.
Discussion on Item 1 under Now Therefore: the penalty of $100.00 a day and the blank space
with no price of the amount that would be waivered. Keep in consideration the amount of time
Gary Quintal, CEO has put into this. Catherine Bruce went over the time frame for the new
window placement. Decision by the Select Board to assess no fines or penalties due to delaying
of the consent agreement until the CEO is present for the discussion and would like to see $0 for
penalty fees. Catherine Bruce to get a ballpark estimate date from Androscoggin Builders of
when the windows would be completed and to meet with Mr. Dyer and Mr. Quintal and agree on
a workable consent agreement.

Page 1 of 3 — unapproved




Communications

e Select Board Communications

» Mr. Bourgoine received an email from a residence regarding Sam Tibbetts, the town financial
advisor. Advise Mr. Dyer to schedule a date for him to come and speak at a Select Board
mecting.

» Mr. Curtis spoke regarding the trails trust fund and that there is an opportunity that if anyone
wants to donate there is an account to do so.

» Mr. Dunham will not be available to attend the next Select Board agenda meeting with Mr, Dyer
and Ms. Pomerleau on January 4, 2016.

¢ Town Manager
» Mr. Dyer went over his town manager report dated December 28, 2015.

e Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments
» Cemetery Committee Minutes — November 16, 2015
= Minutes not yet approved, this was an error.

¢ Public Communications - Members of the public may address the Select Board on any topic
» None

Appointments / Reappointments & Resignations:

e 16-058 — Accept the resignation of Aaron McClure from the Recreation Board
» Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine to regretfully accept Mr. McClure’s resignation, second by Mr.
Curtis. Disenssion: Thank you to Mr. McClure for his time on the recreation board. Vote 5 to ¢
in favor.

New Business:

¢ 16-060 — 1* reading of the revised Board Roles & Responsibilities Policy
» On page 4 under Access to Information, change requests for information that would require an
undue amount of staff time (in excess of % hour to 1 hour).
» Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine to accept the first reading of the roles and responsibilities policy
of the Select Board as amended, second by Mrs. Sammons. Vete 5 to 0 in favor. :

e 16-061 — Set a date and time for the Annual Chairs Meeting
» Meceting set for Monday, January 4, 2016 starting at 5:30 pm, public meeting with the chairs to
be held at the Town Office. Mr. Dunham will not be able to attend. Refreshments will be
available. Mr. Dyer to post on town website.

s 16-062 — Discussion of Secret Ballot Review Process
» Discussion among the Select Board regarding the proposal for process and facilitation services
for The Readfield Community Process to build a community consensus on town meetings
prepared by Pamela Plumb & Associates. Also, if necessary to go forward with having a
facilitator, if it is in the budget to go ahead with this process and the high importance of having a
facilitator, along with the time length of 18 months. Mr. Dyer to talk with Pamela Plumb
regarding the pricing and to look into appropriate funds to use, along with the time frame.

Page 2 of 3 — unapproved




e 16-063 — Consideration of proposed Town Office hours
» Mr. Dyer went over his proposal for change of town office window hours. Reduce from 38 hours
to 34 hours with earlier morning hours before 8:30 am one day.

Motion made by Mr. Curtis to extend the meeting by 15 minutes, second by Mr, Dunham, Vote 5 to 0 in favor.

» Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine to accept the change of schedule to 34 hours a week, subject to
a three month review, second by Mrs. Sammons. Discussion; Suggestion on closing the town
office one day and having window hours open for 30 hours a week to use for training purposes
and other needs while keeping in mind front desk window hours, the current union contract and
if the money is in the budget to cover change of hours. Ample notice to the public with the
changes of hours. Put out to the public for suggestions on hours for 34 and for 30 a week.

Vote 2 to 3; opposed by Mr. Dunham, Ms., Pomerleau and Mr. Curtis.

Motion made by Mr. Curtis to extend the meeting by 15 minutes, second by Mr. Dunham., Vote 5 to 0 in favor.

e 16-064 — Approval of abatements
» Review and discussion of certificate of abatements, notice of judgment and court alternative

dispute resolution service/report of completed mediation session. The total amount of the
abatements is $5,469.24.

Motion made by Ms. Pomerleau to extend the meeting by 15 minutes, second by Mr. Dunham. Vote 5 to 0 in
favor
» Motion made by Mr. Curtis that we move to abate, according to the legal agreement that was
presented to the Select Board, in the amount of $3,547.06 for 2014 fiscal year and $1,922.18 for
the 2013 fiscal year, second by Ms. Pomerleau. Vote 4 to 1, Mr. Dunham opposed.

e 16-065 — Consider forming an Age Friendly Community Adhoc Committee
» Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine that the Readfield Select Board shall appoint an Adhoc

committee for exploring age friendly opportunities for our community consisting of up to five
individuals for one year. The committee is charged with creating an inventory of possible
desirable resources and services, identifying best methods to communicate the preceding to older
citizens in our community, recommending future courses of action they deem desirable, and
pursuing in conjunction with the town manager any grant offerings that may be available for
assessment and/or implementation of age friendly resources upon approval of the Select Board.
Second by Mrs. Sammons. Discussion: There are a couple individuals in mind to be on the
committee and hopes to have a couple senior citizens as well. Veote 5 to 0 in favor.

e 16-067 - Other
» None

Motion made by Mr. Bourgoine to adjourn the meeting at 9:40 pm, second by Mrs. Sammons. Vote 5 to 0 in
favor.

Minutes recorded by Kristin Parks, Board Secretary

Page 3 of 3 — unapproved




Readfield
09:49 AM

Acct
27

1862

710

1445

451

1327

773

2017

1800

989

353

1037

1501

2048

379

403

463

462

597

978

Ashby Leroy ]

Atwood Tradl A

Billington Lisa L.

Bourque Megan S

Choate Richard W

Colpitt Isreal T

Douin Jessica

Dubois Duane H

Ertha, E Darlene

Fogg Timothy

Goucher Audrey M

RE Collection Account Status List

Order By: Name As Of Date: 01/07/2016

Carpenter{Cerri) Elizabeth

Clark Robert E Jr Clark Kristie F

Evans Tina Z Evans Ronald C

Fike Brandon E Fike Jessica L

Fike Brandon E Fike Jessica L

French Lloyd A French Lori A

Property Payment Abate -
Tax Due Received Adjust
1,251.97 0.57 -74.38
840.15 0.00 -53.85
1,671.42 0.00 -96.59
4,347.21 2.44 -247.28
290.47 50.00 -22.76
924.98 0.00 -56.79
4,832.05 0.00 -279.76
776.37 30.86 -55.19
2,591.74 1,300.00 -117.21
1,168.78 0.00 | -76.29
1,934.01 503.04 -111.07
1,632.19 526.66 -96.85
2,693.53 0.00 -158.32
1,108.78 0.00 -66.32
2,789.81 0.00 -157.11
931.47 450.00 -58.83
1,522.95 0.00 -89.08

Goucher Ted Forest Products Inc

887.61 0.00 -54.77

Karsten-Beck Wendy D

2,434.13 0.00 -138.21

Karsten-Beck, Wendy D.

572.21 0.00 -37.86

Tax Year: 2013-1, Balance Due >.01, Show Interest

Balance
Due

1,325.78

894.00

1,768.01

4,592.05

263.23

981.77

5,111.81

800.70

1,408.95

1,245.07

1,542.04

1,202.38

2,851.85

1,175.10

2,946.92

540.30

1,612.03

942.38

2,572.34

610.07

01/07/2016
Page 1

Balance Due Refund

w/ Interest
1,326.81
894.70
1,769.39
4,595.71
263.44
982.52
5,115.88
801.31
1,410.15
1,246.02
1,543.39
1,203.41
2,854.10
1,176.00
2,949.26
540.75
1,613.29
943.09
2,574.38

- 610.52

Abate
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0..00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00




Readfield RE Collection Account Status List 01/07/2016
09:49 AM Tax Year: 2013-1, Balance Due >.01, Show Interest Page 2
Order By: Name As Of Date: 01/07/2016

Property Payment Abate - Balance Balance Due Refund
Acct Year Tax Due Received Adjust Due w/ Interest Abate
2087 Kents Hill Orchards Inc. *PP #32
2013-1 1,958.29 0.00 -112.37 2,070.66 2,072.29 0.00
666 Larsen Rickard, heirs & devisees
2013-1 1,148.23 0.00 -75.19 1,223.42 1,224.35 0.00
712 Lucas Robert L Jr Lucas Michelle
2013-1 1,190.32 0.00 -71.06 1,261.38 1,262.35 0.00
1889 Lucas Robert L Sr
2013-1 751.20 0.00 -47.44 798.64 799.24 0.00
1890 Lucas Robert L Sr. Lucas Inez L '
2013-1 2,756.17 0.00 -155.30 2,511.47 2,913.78 0.00
152 Maranacook Motors
2013-1 1,940.50 2.43 -117.81 2,055.88 2,057.49 0.00
633 Oakes Robert D Oakes Laurie A
2013-1 838.04 0.00 -58.50 896.54 897.21 0.00
1503 Orr Janet ‘
2013-1 528.85 450.00 -32.39 111.24 111,33 0.00
1609 Pierce Margaret H
2013-1 592.37 0.00 -38.89 631.26 631.72 0.00
1295 Pierce Margaret H
2013-1 1,113.70 0.00 -66.94 1,180.64 1,181.55 0.00
1524 Potcher Elaine Lucas
2013-1 1,360.35 1,125.88 -73.86 308.33 308.57 0.00
2026 Poulin Francis A.
2013-1 2,115.25 0.00 -127.56 2,242.81 2,244.57 0.00
1564 Rourke-Parks Nancy
2013-1 502.47 0.00 -41.00 543.47 543.86 0.00
715 Savage Eric Peaslee Melissa
2013-1 880.13 900.00 -53.17 33.30 33.32 0.00
1128 Siracusa Richard Jr
2013-1 498.94 0.00 -33.87 532.81 533.19 0.00
834 Sullivan William
20131 664.53 500.00 -46.60 211.13 211.30 0.00

155 Violette Ronald P/P#113
2013-1 4,745.22 2.67 -268.70 5,011.25 5,015.25 0.00




Readfield RE Collection Account Status List
09:49 AM Tax Year: 2013-1, Balance Due >.01, Show Interest
Order By: Name As Of Date: 01/07/2016

01/07/2016

Page 3

Property Payment Abate - Balance Balance Due Refund
Acct  Year Tax Due Received Adjust Due w/ Interest Abate
Total for 37 58,786.39 -3,469.17 56,455.49
5,844.55 56,411.01 0.00
Payment Summary

Type Principal Interest Costs Non Int. Total
P - Payment 4,642.91 727.09 474,55 5,387.50 5,844.55
Subtotal 4,642.91 727.09 474.55 5,387.50 5,844.55
I - Interest Charged 0.00 -3,007.69 0.00 0.00 -3,007.69
L - Lien Costs 0.00 000 -461.48 -461.48 -461.48
Z - Current Interest 0.00 -44.48 0.00 0.00 -44.48
Total 4,642.91 -2,325.08 13.07 4,926.02 2,330.90

Non-Interest Due Balance Due

2013-1 56,411.01 56,455.49

Total 56,411.01 56,455.49
I - This account is a deleted account.




Cemetery CommitteeMeeting
December 7, 2015
Approved January 4, 2016

Members Present: Grace Keene, John Moran, Brenda Lake Pam Osborn, Deb Doten, Lydia
Adelson

Members Excused: Andy Tolman, Sandra Rourke, Marianne Perry

Staff: Karen Peterson, Eric Dyer

Select Board Liaison:

Members of the Public: Lenny Reay, Fran Zambella

The meeting came to order at 9:00 am.

The November 13, 2015 meeting minutes were approved. Motion made by Lydia Adelson,
second by Brenda Lake. Approved 5-0,

The objective of this meeting is to make recommendations to the Select Board for cemeteries in
the Capital Improvement Budget.

Budget for 2016
Preliminary budget recommendations need to be given to the Town Manager by 12/31/2015.

John Moran, Grace Keene, Deb Doten and Karen Peterson will bring recommendations to the
full committee at the next Cemetery Committee Meeting. Draft recommendations from this
committee are acceptable to present by 12/31 as long as it clearly states pending Cemetery
Committee approval.

Capitol Improvement: _

Maple Trees: There are a total of 33 aging maple trees that will need to be addressed. There
are at least 3 trees that need immediate attention. The cost of tree removal for one of these
trees is approximately $1500. A plan needs to be implemented for one maple that has a lot of
decay in the Whittier Cemetery. Action steps are (a) have the Town Forester identify trees that
may be saved and associated costs if any, (b) develop a timeline and estimated cost of for trees
that need to be removed, {c) recommend that the issue of replacing trees be a discussion held
for all trees in Readfield and (d) encourage donations of trees and plants rather than a
purchase.

Stone Wall Repair at Readfield Corner Cemetery: Grace Keene gave an overview of the Helen
Watts PE report on the Church Rd. run off causing the problems with the stone wall. The Road
Committee has not discussed this matter yet. No recommendations can be made until the
Road Committee reviews the report and runoff into the swail in front of the stone wall.

Stone Repair: Planning for cemetery stone repair funding will need to include a maintenance
budget as well as identifying all stones that need repair. Deb Doten will forward the stones
needing repair to the Town Manager.




Other CIP Suggestions: Lenny Reay suggested that the Cemetery Committee take advantage of
low interest bonds and get all of the stones repaired at once.

2016 Budget Recommendations
The committee members who will be developing draft budget recommendations will meet
December 14 at 9:00 am.

John Moran made a motion to recommend $4500 dollars for tree removal. Brenda Lake
seconded the motion. Motion was approved 5-0.

East Readfield Fence Proposal

Lenny Reay asked for the cemetery to consider a fence behind the berms at the East Readfield
Cemetery. He would like a having a fence (a) is part of Readfield’s history, (b) is what would
‘make those who are unhappy with the berms satisfied and (c) that a fence along the Plains Rd.
would be installed at no cost to the taxpayers. He also said that he could get many (up to 100)

- people with complaints. Lastly he stated that the town should provide the maintenance for the
fence.

Deb Doten stated that the Cemetery Committee had never been given a directive to raise
money for a fence nor had any one on the Committee made promises as to what would be
planted. The money raised has been appreciated and with much acknowledgment to those
who have given to the project. She feels the Committee more than met the request of planting
lilacs and that the plantings in these berms will produce a living fence that will be quite tall
within three years. The Cemetery Committee has received no complaints other than from Mr.
Reay, and it is appreciated that he came to speak at this meeting.

John Moran made the motion to install a fence at the East Readfield Cemetery at no cost to the
taxpayers by June 2016. Deb Doten seconded the motion. Approved 4-2.

Grace Keene stated that any fence must be low maintenance. History has shown that fences are
problematic for maintenance.

Deb Doten made a motion that a sub-committee be formed to explore the options and make
recommendations for a fence at the East Readfield Cemetery and that any fence in this
cemetery be (a) lowest maintenance possible and (b) of historical significance. John Moran
seconded the motion. Approved 5-1. John Moran, Brenda Lake, and Deb Doten will be on the
sub-committee. Members absent today will also be invited to work on recommendations for
this project.

Next Meeting: January 4, 2016 at 1:00 pm.
Meeting adjourned at 11:30




Readfield Board of Selectmen
January 11, 2016
ﬁ ltem # 16-070
John M. & Elaine C. Stanley T VLS
95 South Road

Readfield, ME 04355 JAN 04

LY

e

January 4, 2016

Town of Readfield ' @p y

Aitn: Robin Lint, Town Clerk
8 Old Kent's Hill Rd
Readfield, ME 04355

Dear Robin:
Please consider this letter my official resignation from the Town of Readfield Roads Committee.

My wife and | will soon be completing our relocation to Augusta, making me ineligible to
continue to serve on this Committee since | will no longer reside in Readfield.

in looking back at my service on this committee, | fake pride in the progress our community has
made in improving and maintaining Readfield's roads and related infrastructure. Hopefully,
future town budgets will provide the funding necessary to protect and preserve those
improvements.

| also hope that the "Town of Readfield Road and Highway Improvement Projects Public
Information Guide" which a previous Town Manager invited me to write for the town will continue
to meet the needs of Readfield and its residents in years to come.

My thanks to all of the Roads Committee members | served with during my tenure and to those
town officials who supported our efforts.

Sincerely,

AT Sty

John M. Stanley
95 South Rd.
Readfield, ME 04355

ce: Larry Perkins, Chair, Readfield Roads Committee
Eric Dyer, Town Manager, Town of Readfield




(ROALEL UH‘ HEHUHELU | 'EGE‘VED Lo

Readfield Board of Selectmen
January 1174, 2016

ltem # 16-071

all not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital st:
ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board m:
‘consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap would
prevent the applicant from performing the duties of the appointment and reasonable a_ccom_miqr_;!a.'.(ion cannot be made.

e - DATE REED
’@ « APPOENTM ENT APPLICATION ~ “—BEE 22 2i—
The Sel

The Select Board shall have final authority over the appointment of citizens to Boards, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government. The Select Board shall not appoint an applicant to a position for which the-

applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest.

Please check one: S E l 1* time appointment ':. I re-éppointment

Which Board, Committee or Commission

arevot__: applying for? [ ?\edxw&r:\@n C@mm Y2 | }

Name: mea/hﬂdwv\@m Phone (H): _@7—4685 S ES
Street address: D Foom KcL ___ Phone(c): 207~ 4‘%”’7368
Mailing address: 45 Fma\ Rd Qpad ﬁ@ d MEOL/ 553’ -

E-Mail: lnhmckfev @) marﬂmnmﬂf o

Be!ow please tel us of any experience and/or training that’ miéh"f bé"-‘éiééf('i-l in this' position.

[ haae. beo m‘l@mﬁ:m mwﬁm Wit f?wwcﬁm@mz

Qﬂnaé WM O\QQ(/MWLQA {QWI “'WV\JMA I H’& 6{30‘\\[-3

BdS

Below please tell us the reason you are interested in applying for this position.

ol teaums as well . ['ue V‘OlUﬂWC@QC%{d T

To heiow Pdom OMAM 5hrona %ma farwand
o ietds v Flo comnuathy

If you are currently employed, what is your position?

P onploved | {nd ep&/\&m@maﬁvw dH Pamawdcﬁtf |

@@ota\@ g\a&W/ class temonstradter)

i




Name: %’““q\ F\O‘ ! Pasition MB"\_ Q{\QNWTerm: ﬁ-m-aoh;#

' @@ CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT
Open '

ition ¢

rerm: | 43\\ &30-20\T

Was this position advertlsed? Yes DNo _ if no, please explain:

is there a recommendation W? @Xes DNO ~ Ifno, please explain:

CLERK’S USE AFTER THE APPOINTMENT
‘Chair hés been notified of appointment? DYes DNO if yes, what date:

is an Oath appropriate: DYes D No If yes, what date:.
- SELECT BOARD‘APPOINTMENT

To ._‘t:\;sf\\'\c-\\ Flannen Jof Readfield, in the County of Kennebec and State of Maine: There
being a position on the ! ‘22 e 9 \ : :E SQ . we the Select Board of the Municipality
of Readfield do, in accordance with the provisions of the laws o t e State of Maine, hereby appoint you to

said position within and for the Municipality of Readfield, such appointment to be effective:

\— \\"’L(e | thru l @ ~30\1 |- Given under our hand this J[¥), dayof | Yann, |, 2016.

Brugce Bourgoine Allen Curtis Thomas Dunham

Valarie Pomerleau Christine Sammons -




OFHCE USE

TOWN OF READFIELD ' _1#\“0? aoup
L — My
APPOINTMENT APPLICATION T oy 14,18

ltem # 16-072
The Select Board shall not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital status, race color,
ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board may exclude from
consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap wouid
prevent the applicant from performing the duties of the appointment and reasonable accommodation cannot be made.

The Select Board shall have final authority over the appointment of citizens to Boards, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government. The Select Board shall not appoint an applicant to a position for which the
applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest.

Please check one: x [ ©time appoint_meﬁt re-appointment

Which Board, Committee or Commission

are you applying for? A CL H@C’ [Omm f‘HCﬂ/ e Aﬁg ﬁnmc&/lv\

Cc) nnun :'k:j

Name:@@ ma_,.mé —TT/QL:\JK\ | -'Phone (H): @ZQ (,{6] (o
street address: 7 O\ 4 Kents [h{{ @Aphone‘(c:) Y ( ~ {79
Mailing address:__{ .0 - %ﬂ A\ )Q—Ga :LG@(:L %S OL’{35_?'
E—Mall QOM&“’\&’ YY\( @ VYWU\@.M)ODM\(’ ﬂlan[”

Below please tell us of any experience andlor trammg that mlght be useful in this pqsumn

(Rc{jreé . WV\&CC’" o ?Afo\t\o pro((‘cimf . Sheke o€ Mduan€
D f(O‘PDQ/ ma,mc PQ- %V\efm::/f PK‘OJPCA' - (J< 1 |
Direchie - ((Y\mn&f— (orron Hée. oa A—{\‘W«p Meste Schos

'] Below piease tell us the reason you are interested in applying for this position. |

Comn Med Yo Ceerrp whak [edheld (og de
o beYer E\f\oﬁno&—t_ Qs g Seniin, = YOI 00

o o brpad spechum of MchmjtS,,

if you are currently employed, what is your position?

pehasd




APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT FOR:

| Name: @0 MAAN E T‘T"u@u\ ~ | Position A_é ’@c VY\ﬁ n, @Term

CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT

Term | ?j

If no, please explain:

Open position

@y;s:_ DN;

Is there a recommendation attached? va o - Ifno, please explain:

CLERK’S USE AFTER THE APPOI NTMENT '

Was this position advertised?

Chair has been notified of appointment? jves jNo If yes, what date:

Is an Oath appropriate: - Ies No Ifyes, whatdate:{ ~~ =~ ]

216 = P S\ G STV 3 Ot & et

SELECT BOARD APPOINTMENT ' | |
Egm:mﬂ“m Jof Readfleld in the County of Kennebec and State of Maine: There

bemg a position on the : . we the Select Board of the Mumcipallty
of Readfield do, in accor ancelwith the prowisions of t e aws of the State of Mame, hereby appoint vou to
said position \mthm and for the Municlpality of Readfi eld such appointment to be effective:

LY oy,

=1t~ 201, thru | = . Given under our hand this // |, dayof Ej_m 1, 201§

Bruce Bourgoine . | ' Allen Curtis . - Thomas Dunham

[N

Valarie Pomerleau . _ Christine Sammons




Readfield Board of Selectmen

January 11, 2016 .
ltem # 16-060 2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Roles and Responsibilities of the Readfield Select Board, adopted June 3, 2010, amended August
30, 2010, amended July 6, 2011, amended February 13, 2012, amended October 10, 2012, updated
on October 21, 2013 with all amended dates listed above, amended February 10, 2014, amended
November 16, 2015, amended January 11, 2016.

Purpose of Select Board

The Readfield Select Board will fulfill the executive functions of the town. It implements the
directions of Readfield’s residents as voted upon in Annual and Special Town Meetings. Many of
the actions of the Select Board are delegated to the Town Manager (the Town Manager will
frequently delegate tasks to his or her staff). The Select Board may also create and empower certain
committees to oversee specific town functions.

Respongibilities of the Select Board fall into 4 general categories:

Oversight of town finances

Protection of health, safety and welfare of town residents

Management of town property and town manager

Management of relations with contractors, with external agencies, and with the public

il i S

While most of the tasks associated with these responsibilities will be delegated to others (typically
the Town Manager), the ultimate responsibility remains with the Select Board.

Makeup of Select Board

Readfield’s Select Board is composed of 5 members, each elected by public vote of town residents.
Each member will be a town resident,

Election of Select Board members

Each Select Board member is elected for a 3-year term, whose term will begin at the start of the
town’s fiscal year which immediately follows the election. Vacancies on the Select Board may be
filled by interim elections, with a term limited to the end of the current vacated term.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Select Board

The Select Board is, and shall act as, a body, and not as individuals. Except as provided in this
document or by a specific action of the Select Board, no individual Select Board member will have
authority to act outside of official sessions of the Select Board.

Specific duties and responsibilities of the Select Board are enumerated below.

1. Prepare, with assistance of a Budget Committee and the Town Manager, an annual budget, and
present the budget at town meeting

2. Review and modify, on at least an annual basis, a Capital Investment Plan (CIP) for the town

3. Annually elect a 3-person Board of Assessors from the Select Board

1




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Annually, at first meeting in each fiscal year, elect a Chair and a Vice-chair of the Select Board
Annually establish a tax rate (mil rate)

Recruit, contract with and supervise a Town Manager, who will conduct much of the work of
managing town business

Develop, review and modify policies annually for town business, including the function of the
Select Board itself

Hold regular bi-weekly public meetings of the Select Board to conduct town business. These
meetings will be televised and will include opportunity for public participation. Meetings will
follow an agenda prepared in advance by the Chair, the Vice Chair, and the Town Manager. A
template for meeting agenda items will include:

a) Call to order

b) Pledge of Allegiance to American flag

¢) Review and approval of minutes of the previous meeting

d) Approval of warrants for payments of all town expenses

¢) Oral and written communications among Select Board and other town offices, including
reportts from Select Board members, Town Manager, Town Clerk, town boards,
commissions and committees

f) Appointments and reappointments

g) Old (unfinished) business

h) New business

i} Other

j) Executive session

k) Public Communications

1) Adjournment

The Select Board will appoint a member to take notes at meetings of what requests for
information and to-do items were mentioned at each meeting, and to share those notes with the
Town Manager. The Town Manager shall distribute these notes to all members of the Select
Board. The Select Board Chair and Vice-Chair will discuss current workload and time demands
with the Town Manager as part of bi-weekly agenda meetings.

Schedule and conduct special meetings as needed for specific purposes and as the Select Board
deems necessary.

Establish standing boards and commissions, and approve appointment of all members to these
boards and commissions.

Establish ad hoc committees as needed to accomplish specific Town business; approve goals for
each such Committee; and approve all members seeking appointment to such Committee.
Conduct a Select Board retreat at least annually for purpose of assessing the town’s success in
meeting previously established goals, and to set goals for the coming year.

Conduct an annual joint meeting of Select Board and Chairs of all town boards and
Commissions to review Town goals.

Maintain and encourage a free exchange of information between the Select Board, the public,
Town Manager and his or her staff and other town, county and state offices, town boards and
commissions.




16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

22,

2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Appoint individuals from the Select Board as liaisons to the various town boards, commissions,
committees and ad hoc committees at the discretion of the Board.

Annually appoint an individual to the following positions: Treasurer, Road Commissioner,
Transfer Station Manager, Tax Collector, Welfare Director and Fire Chief.

Dispose of surplus or unnecessary equipment or property owned by the town, when such
disposal is deemed by the Select Board to be in the best interest of the town.

Upon and to the extent of approval of voters at town meeting make appropriations from any
available budget line to cover emergency expenses.

Act as a quasi-judicial body when and as required by Maine statutes.

Work collaboratively with nearby towns for sharing resources, joint purchases, sharing best
practices and similar actions which are beneficial to the towns but which do not diminish the
individual character of each town.

Conduct a quarterly review of the Comprehensive Plan implementation checklist by the Select

Board.

Duties and Responsibilities of Select Board Chair and Vice Chair

In addition to their duties and responsibilities as members of the Select Board, the Chair and Vice
Chair have additional duties and responsibilities. These additional duties are discussed in this
section. Except when the Chair and Vice Chair are noted jointly, it is presumed that primary
responsibility falls upon the Chair, but that the Vice Chair will assume such responsibility in the
following instances: (a) absence of the Chair; (b) whenever the Chair has a conflict of interest, as
defined by law or by the Town of Readfield’s Conflict of Interest Ordinance with the business being
conducted by the Select Board; (c} at any other time at the reasonable discretion of the Chair.

1.
2.

3.

The Chair will conduct all meetings and workshops of the Select Board.

The Chair and Vice Chair, working with the Town Manager, will prepare an agenda for each
Select Board meecting.

The Chair will maintain a schedule and preliminary agenda for all meetings and workshops to be
conducted in his or her term. This will be used to help assure efficient use of the Select Board’s
time while conducting necessary town business.

The Chair and Vice Chair will routinely meet with the Town Manager to ensure that they stay
current with town issues. This meeting will be no less frequently than bi-weekly, and may be
combined with the task of setting the agenda for regular Select Board meetings.

The Chair, representing and with the approval of the whole Select Board, will communicate
with the Town’s legal counsel when the Select Board is seeking advice in the following: (a)
issues that concern the Select Board’s supervision of the Town Manager; (b) issues that
concern the Select Board at its role as an arbitrator between the Town Manager and other town
employees; or (c) any other legal matter involving town business with a good faith exception
that the Chair has determined s/he must immediately act in a time sensitive emergency situation
without consultation. The Select Board, at its sole discretion and as legally applicable, may
involve the Town Manager in the above discussion with counsel. The Chair will report back to
the whole Select Board any advice given by legal counsel. All communication between the
Chair and counsel will be posted in a publicly-available log which notes time, date, persons
communicating, method of communication and general nature of the communication; however,

3




2nd Reading Drafi for 01-11-2016

specific advice will not be posted, as it will likely be considered privileged attorney-client
communication.

6. The Chair maintains files containing information pertinent to his/her duties. Such information
includes manuals and policies, a copy of Robert’s Rules of Order, a history of various projects
and issues of interest to the Town, contract, personnel information and evaluations relating to the
Town Manager (if not confidential in nature), budget and CIP information for past and current

- years, and legal communications. Only files deemed as public information may be kept by the
Chair, as all confidential records must be kept at the Town Office in accordance with law, Select
Board members will have unlimited access to the Chair’s files upon request. An outgoing Chair
will convey these files to the succeeding Chair,

7. The Chair is deemed to be the public spokesperson for the Select Board, although he/she can
designate this responsibility freely. With consent of the Select Board, the Chair will execute
agreements, appointments, licenses, applications, correspondence and other documents.

8. The Chair on behalf of the Select Board will approve payroll and expense documentation for the
Town Manager.

9. All members of the Select Board are eligible for election as Chair or Vice Chair and may serve
any number of consecutive terms, as elected annually by fellow members.

10. A vacancy in the position of Chair or Vice Chair will be filled as soon as possible by a regular
election process.

11. The Select Board may remove the Chair from office by a vote of at least three (3) Select Board
members. Such vote shall be taken only after notice in writing to the Chair, public notice and a
hearing conducted in open session. The Chair shall have the right to waive the requirement for
public notice and/or hearing in open session; however, any vote for removal of the Chair must -
be conducted in open session. The Chair is responsible for writing an article for the Town Report
each year and monthly for the Readfield Messenger.

12. Discussions with town staff by Select Board members are limited as described in this document.

Access to Information

The Select Board may require access to recorded or historical information as it conducts town
business. The Select Board (or individual members) will have complete access to any town
information unless protected by law. Requests for any information should be made through the
Town Manager, but can also be made to other appropriate town employees when delegated by the
Town Manager. Requests for information that would require an undue amount of staff time (in
excess of 1 hour) should be reconfirmed among the Select Board Chair, the requesting member and
the Town Manager to see if the request can be narrowed. If, after consideration by this group, the
information request is still considered by the Town Manager to be unduly difficult or time-
consuming, the matter will be reconsidered by the full Select Board, whose decision will be binding,
The Select Board and its individual members should structure requests so that they deal only with
retrieval of documents and data, and so that such requests minimize the need for additional work.
Select Board requests for opinions and recommendations on specific items will go through the Town
Manager or his/her designee.

Notwithstanding the above, it is imperative that the Select Board receive the professional
observations, opinions, ideas, criticisms and concerns of the Town Manager and town staff,

4




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Town employees are often more keenly aware of issues and opportunities, and, if Select Board
action is required to advance or correct the issue, it needs to be actively communicated to the Select
Board by the Town Manager. Such communication may take one of several forms, including (a)
discussion at bi-weekly meeting of Chair and Town Manager, (b) a paragraph in the written Town
Manager’s report at each regular meeting of the Select Board, (c) verbal comments at the annual
Select Board/Town Manager retreat or (d) comments directly from town staff within Select Board
meetings or as designated by the Town Manager. All Select Board members should recall, however,
that they are not permitted to act individually to resolve any such issues so communicated, nor to
interfere with the Town Manager’s role; action by the full Select Board is still required, while
respecting appropriate roles for the Select Board and Town Manager. The Select Board should
encourage the Town Manager to rely on the professional input of the town employees to better
~inform decisions that affect town government operations. ‘

Select Board members must always abide by the Select Board > Manager > staff communication /
“chain of command” structure. Select Board members should refrain from entering into discussion
with town staff (town staff defined as all town employees except the Town Manager) regarding
conditions of employment and management issues. If town staff member begins such a discussion,
the Select Board member should ask the employee to discuss this matter with their supervisor.
These limits are set so as to preserve the “chain of command” and the Select Board member’s
neutrality when and if the condition of employment rises to a level in which the Select Board must
participate as arbiter.

Procedural responsibilities of Select Board
The Select Board will use the following norms/rules in conducting its duties and responsibilitics:

1. Select Board will hold regular public meetings (currently held on alternate Mondays), at which it
will conduct its regular business. All Select Board members will use best efforts to attend each
meeting. At least 3 members of the Select Board must be present to vote on issues. A majority
vote of those Select Board members present is required for approval of any action.

2. Select Board members agree to observe Meeting Ground Rules as presented in Appendix B.

It will be a goal to complete each Select Board meeting within a 2 and a half-hour time limit. A

longer meeting will be conducted with the consent of a majority of Select Board members in

attendance at that meeting.

4. Robert’s Rules of Order will be used as a guide for conducting each meeting. Deviations from
Robert’s Rules will be allowed if agreed upon by a majority of members.

5. An agenda for each regular Select Board meeting will be prepared by the Select Board Chair and
Vice-chair in collaboration with the Town Manager. Each Select Board member is encouraged
to recommend to the Chair agenda items for upcoming meetings. The agenda will be posted at
prominent places within the town, and will be distributed to each Select Board member and to
other interested parties at least 3 days in advance of the meeting,.

. Special meetings of the Select Board may be held at the request of the Chair or upon the request
of a majority of Select Board members. Such special meetings will be held to conduct business
of a time-sensitive nature or when the amount of business to be conducted by the Select Board

5

had

(=)




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

requires more time than available in regular meetings. Public notice and agenda will be posted
in advance of special meetings, and no business outside of the posted agenda may be conducted
at that special meeting.

The Select Board conducts several workshops each year to perform informational, educational
or deliberative functions. No formal action (voting) is conducted at these workshops (any action
will be taken at a forthcoming Select Board meeting,) Select Board workshops will be held
according to an Annual Select Board Workshop Schedule, which will be published no later than
August 31% each year, but which can be modified at any time. All workshops are open to the
public.

Each Select Board member will swear an Oath of Office before the Town Clerk, as stipulated by
State statute, after election, or as soon as practicable thereafter, and in_accordance with 30-A
M.R.S.A. § 2526(9),6/6/2011_and before participating as a Select Board member in any Town
business.

Each Select Board member is expected to use best efforts to complete the training courses listed
in Appendix A within 6 months of initial election.

All Select Board members will certify that they have completed mandatory training including,
but not limited to, The National Incident and Management System and Maine’s Freedom of
Access Act. '

Select Board members are free, and are encouraged, to communicate with members of the
public, but should realize that they are not empowered to act individually on behalf of the town.
Any requests from the public for information or action should be directed to Town Manager or
his or her designee.

Select Board members are expressly forbidden to conduct town business outside of a duly
posted public forum. Thus, they should use discretion whenever they find themselves together
in groups of 3 or more. It would be best to disperse any such group of 3 or more members.
Select Board members should use discretion in communicating via email. Specifically,
individual members should not address other members as a group via email, and should refrain
from emailing any other individual Select Board members. The recommended procedure for
distributing information via email is for an individual to communicate only with the Chair or the
Town Manager. The Town Manager will, in turn, distribute any information to the entire group
of Select Board members. It is understood that all email documents and communications
between or among any town officials are a matter of public record.

Telephone communication between two Select Board members is permitted, but phone
conversation among more than two Select Board members is prohibited. Select Board members
are not permitted to participate in meetings via telephone,

The Select Board By-laws (see Appendix C) are incorporated by reference.

Conflict with Laws

Any conflict or inconsistency between these Roles and Responsibilities and any applicable law shall
be resolved in favor of the law.




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Amendments

These Roles and Responsibilities, or any provision thereof, may be waived on any occasion by
majority vote of the Select Board unless otherwise provided by law. These Roles and
Responsibilities may be amended at any time in writing by majority vote of the Select Board.




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Appendix A
ORIENTATION OF NEW SELECT BOARD MEMBERS
AFTER ELECTION:
o  Take oath of office from Town Clerk

o) Fili out w-2 with Finance Director

Things to do, read and know before attending your first meeting:

o Select Board Roles & Responsibilities

o Select Board By-laws

o Town Manager Roles & Responsibilitics

o Town Manager Contract

o Procedures for appointments to boards and committees
o Executive sessions law and procedures

o Chain of command with employees

o Financial Procedures

o Current agenda items

o Current and pending contracts

o [E-mail addresses and phone coﬁtacts for other board members and town officials

o Become familiar with the Maine State Statutes site. Title 30-A Municipalities and Counties
web site: http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/30-A/title30-AchQsec0.html

Sign up and attend ASAP:

o Maine Municipal Association (MMA) training for Newly Elected Officials workshop and
other relevant workshops

o National Incident Management (NIMS) course- (Can be done online)




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

As you can, but sooner than later, it is a recommendation to read the Town Policies:

o]

O

o

o]

Personnel Policy

Purchasing Policy

Disbursement of employees’ wages Policy
Disbursement of state fees Policy

FOAA, NON-FOAA complaint Policies
Public Communication Policy

Investment Policy and Fund Balance Policy
Annual Board Chairs Meeting procedures
Disposition of tax acquired properties Policy
Government TV Policy and Procedures
Mailbox Guidelines

Pre-Holiday Closing Policy

Warrant article petition Policy

Rentals of Town Hall and Beach Property

Read Town Ordinances:

o]

O

Land Use Ordinance

Conflict of Interest and Recall Ordinance
General Assistance Ordinance

Animal Ordinance

Communication Towers Ordinance
Firearms Ordinance

Fire Department Ordinance

Flood Plain Ordinance




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

o E-911 Ordinance
o Mass Gathering Ordinance

o Noise Ordinance

o

Sludge Ordinance
o Solid Waste Ordinance

Snow Plow Ordinance

o]

Readfield Corner Parking Ordinance

o

Readfield follows state law pertaining to fireworks. There is no local policy or ordinance at
this time, so please read the state law.

0

Know the following Town Plans:

o Emergency Operations Plan ( EOP )

o Capital Improvement Plan (CIP Plan)

o Comprehensive Plan
Meetings that can take place:

o Workshops

o Public Hearings

o Adhoc committees

o Annual Select Board Retreat

o Select Board members attend the Annual Chairs meeting
As time allows:

o Read MMA Elected Officials Manuel

o Become familiar with Town website: www.readfield.govoffice.com/

o Walk the Trail system

o Tour the Transfer Station

10




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

o Tour the cemeteries

o Tour town roads

o Walk the sidewalk

o Know the Town buildings we are responsible for

o Read the Inter local Agreements: (Transfer Station and Maintenance )

o Attend other board, committee, and commission meetings

o Write articles for Readfield Messenger: (people lové information)
Update vourself on various committees and boards working on future projects:

o Library Status

o Fire Station

o Athletic Fields

o Conservation and Open Space Plan

o Town Farm Forest Plan

o Try to stay involved in the RSU 38 budgef process

o Attend municipal and RSU 38 school budget meetings in spring

Miscellaneous:

o Be on time for meetings

o Be prepared with what is in the packet; do your homework

o Review an accounts payable and payroll warrant with someone before taking one on yourself
o Return calls, e-mails, questions, etc. from residents AFTER researching the information

o No questions are ever stupid

o Can’t please everyone, so don’t try

o Don’t act on your own as a board member. Be careful how you speak and state something to

anyone.

11




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

You can call any other board member anyﬁme
You can call the Town Manager anytime
If there is something you want on the agenda, talk to the Chair

If you receive a letter from a resident, you should pass it on to JUST the Town Manager, and
he/she and the Chair can decide to pass on to the rest of the Select Board (unless it is a
complaint about the Town Manager which would go directly to only the Chair)

Don’t EVER respond to anyone on behalf of the Select Board, except to relay voted
positions

Remember there are 5 on the board that decide all town issues
Enjoy it and have some fun
LISTEN TO THE PUBLIC, stay upbeat and positive

Try to get back to a resident whether by returning a call, e-mails or answering a question,
after researching it

Don’t try to be a hero

- When making decisions, remember you are representing the entire community
Admit when you are WRONG

Vote how you really feel, don’t just go with other board members

People that voted you in like to see you attend Fireman’s Breakfast, Bean hole supper,
Heritage Days, etc.

Follow chain of command with employees (This is important that you know you cannot
direct any employees to do something for you nor ask them questions concerning
information about their job)

DON *T TAKE THINGS PERSONALLY!!!

12




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Appendix B

Meeting Ground Rules

Ground rules are the rules of conduct by which the Select Board members as a group agree to abide
during a meeting. Ground rules are helpful because they explicitly spell out behavior and
procedures that people normally consider fair but sometimes abandon in the heat of the discussion.

Behavioral ground rules identify norms for behavior. The Readfield Select Board members agree

that:
1)

2)
3)

4

We will treat each other and the public with respect.

We will not use language or tone intended to dismiss or belittle any individual or group.

The Board may disagree or have differing opinions amongst itself or with members of the
public. Active listening shall be practiced by all board members and the public in an attempt
to understand and resolve the underlying issues.

We will advocate for public participation providing it enhances the decision making process
to informed decisions incorporating the interests and concerns of the whole community.

Procedural ground rules include any guidelines for how meetings will proceed. The Readfield
Select Board members agree that:

1y

2)

3)
4)

5)

If a Board member has to leave the meeting temporarily, the discussion may continue and a
vote on the topic may be taken if a motion is made and seconded. In any situation where a
Board member has to leave a meeting, the member has the responsibility to inform the Chair
if the member plans to return to the meeting in progress and whether the member would like
to be included in a vote on the topic under discussion.

The agenda shall suggest the amount of time for open discussion on any topic and the Select
Board will agree or modify those suggestions at the beginning of each meeting. A time
allowance for each agenda item will be provided as part of the agenda.

The Chair shall be in charge of running the meeting.

All Select Board members will be given adequate, reasonable and equal opportunity to
express an opinion on every issue. The Chair will recognize each member, in turn, to give
their opinion. If additional discussion on a topic is necessary, beyond time allowed in the
agenda, the Chair will agree to schedule it for an upcoming meeting.

Meetings will begin on time and end on time. The meeting cannot extend beyond 2.5 hours
without an affirmative vote by the board.

Substantive ground rules describe what content will be covered during the meetings.

The Chair shall suggest substantive rules for each topic on the agenda and the Select Board will
agree or modify them at the beginning of each meeting. If the substance of a topic is expected to be
open for any conversation, the topic will be listed as “Open”.

13




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Code of Ethics for Public Participation Practitioners

The International Association of Public Participation (IAP2) Code of Ethics for Public Participation
Practitioners supports and reflects IAP2’s Core Values for the Practice of Public Participation. The
Core Values define the expectations and aspirations of the public participation process. The Code of
Ethics speaks to the actions of practitioners.

Preamble

As members of IAP2, we recognize the importance of a code of Ethics, which guide the actions of
those who advocate including all affected parties in public decision-making process. In order to
fully discharge our duties as public participation practitioners, we define terms used explicitly
throughout our Code of Ethics. We define stakeholders as any individual, group of individuals,
organizations, or political entity with a stake in the outcome of a decision. We define the public as
those stakeholders who are not part of the decision-making entity or entities. We define public
participation as any process that involves the public in problem-solving or decision making and that
uses public input to make better decisions.

This Code of Ethics is a set of principles, which guide us in our practice of enhancing the integrity
of the public participation process. As practitioners, we hold ourselves accountable for these
principles and strive to hold all participants to the same standards.

1) PURPOSE: We support public participation as a process to make better decisions that
incorporate the interests and concerns of all affected stakeholders and meet the needs of the
decision making process.

2) ROLE OF PRACTITIONER: We will enhance the public’s participation in the decision
making process and assist decision makings in being responsive to the public’s concerns and
suggestions.

3) TRUST: We will undertake and encourage actions that build trust and credibility for the
process among all the participants.

4) DEFINING THE PUBLIC’S ROLE: We will carefully consider and accurately portray the
public’s role in the decision making process.

5) OPENNESS: We will encourage the disclosure of all information relevant to the public’s
understanding and evaluation of a decision.

6) ACCESS TO THE PROCESS: We will ensure that stakeholders have fair and equal access
to the public participation process and the opportunity to influence decisions.

7) RESPECT FOR COMMUNITIES: We will avoid strategies that risk polarizing community
interests or that appears to “divide and conquer.”

8) ADVOCACY: We will advocate for the public participation process and will not advocate
for interest, party or project outcome.

9) COMMITMENTS: We ensure that all commitments made to the public, including those by
the decision makers, are in good faith. '

10) SUPPORT OF THE PRACTICE: We will mentor new practitioners in the field and

14




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

education decision makers and the public about the value and use of public participation.,

15




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Appendix C

Bylaws of the Select Board of the Town of Readfield adopted initially on 09/02/03 and
as part of the Select Board Roles and Responsibilities on 06/03/10, amended July 6, 2011, and
amended February 13, 2012, amended October 10, 2012, Updated on Oct 21% 2013 with all
amended dates listed above, amended February 10, 2014.

Section 1. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of these Bylaws is to establish reasonable rules of procedure for Select Board
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) meetings and to promote the fair, orderly and efficient
conduct of the Board’s proceedings and affairs. These Bylaws shall govern the Board’s practices and
procedures except as otherwise provided by law and shall be liberally construed so as to accomplish
their purpose.

Section 2. Officers; Duties

Officers of the Board shall consist of a Chair and a Vice Chair. These officers shall be chosen
annually at the first regular meeting in July of each year by and from among Board members unless
otherwise provided by law. The Chair shall preside at all Board meetings and shall have authority to
rule on questions of evidence and procedure, to maintain order and determine the course of
proceedings and to take such other action as may be necessary and not inconsistent with these
Bylaws or other law to enable the Board to perform its duties and conduct its affairs. The Chair also
shall, together with the Town Manager, set the agenda in accordance with Board agenda policy for
each meeting. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall preside and shall have the same
authority as the Chair. In the event of the absence at a scheduled meeting of both the Chair and the
Vice-Chair, the Board members present shall elect a Chair Pro Term from amongst those members
present to conduct the meeting.

Section 3. Mectings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held every other Monday throughout the year or as
rescheduled by a majority vote of the Board. Special meetings may be called at the discretion of the
Chair or upon the request of a majority of the Board, provided; however, that notice thereof shall be
given to each member and to representatives of the press at least four days in advance of the
scheduled meeting, except in case of extraordinary circumstances know the meaning when notice
shall be given by the fastest and earliest means possible. No business may be conducted other than
as specified in said notice for the call of the meeting.

Notice of all Board meetings shall be given as required by law and by Board policy, and all such
meetings shall be open to the public except as otherwise provided by law.

No business may be conducted by the Board except at a duly called and noticed meeting or without
a quorum consisting of a majority of the Board members being present. A template for meeting’

16




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

agenda items will include:

a) Calltoorderb) Pledge of Allegiance to American flag

¢) Review and approval of minutes of the previous meeting

d) Approval of warrants for payments of all Town expenses

e) Oral and written communications among Select Board and other Town offices, including
reports from Select Board members, Town Manager, Town Clerk, Town Boards,
Commissions and Committees

f) Appointments and reappointments

g) Old (unfinished) business

h) New business

i) Other

j) Executive session

k) Public Communications

1) Adjournment

The Town Manager or the Town Manager’s designee shall act as secretary at Board meetings. The
duties of the secretary shall be to prepare agendas of all Board meetings, take minutes of Board
meetings, maintain records of the Board, and at the Chair’s direction, prepare correspondence for
the Board and perform other duties as are normally carried out by a secretary. The secretary shall
keep a record of all resolutions, votes, transactions, correspondence, findings and conclusions of the
Board. Minutes of Select Board meetings will include a brief summary of each agenda item, as well
as roll call vote on the issue. All records of the Board shall be deemed public and may be inspected
with reasonable notice during normal business hours,

Vacancies in the position of either the Chair or Vice-Chair positions shall immediately be filled by
regular election procedures.

Section 4. Hearings

Public hearings of the Board shall be called as required by law or on such other occasions as a
majority of the Board may deem appropriate. Notice of all such hearings be given as required by law
and Board policy and shall include the date, time and location of the hearing and a general
description of the subject matter.

The Chair shall convene all hearings by describing the purpose of the hearing and general
procedures to be followed. The Board may receive any oral or documentary evidence but shall
exclude irrelevant, immaterial or unduly repetitious evidence, provided; however, that formal rules
of evidence shall not apply. Each party shall have right to present its case in the order determined by
the Chair and without interruption, provided; however, that the Chair may impose such reasonable
time limits as may be necessary to ensure that all parties have an adequate opportunity to be heard.
In any adjudicatory proceeding, including proceedings on licenses, permits or other approvals, each
party shall also have the right to submit rebuttal evidence and to conduct cross- examination of any
other party through the Chair, provided, however, that the Chair may impose such other reasonable
limitations as may be necessary to prevent an abuse of process.

17




2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Section 5. Participation and Voting

Any action of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of its membership present
and voting unless otherwise provided by law.

No Board member may participate or vote on any matter in which the member has

a conflict of interest or other disqualification as defined by law. Any question of whether
a Board member has such a conflict of interest or other disqualification shall be decided
by majority vote of the remaining members, :

All members who are present and not disqualified as provided herein shall vote in every matter to be
voted upon unless excused by the Chair for good cause shown.

Section 6. Decisions

All decisions of the Board shall be made within the time limits, if any, established by law. All final
decisions shall be in writing, shall become a part of the Board’s permanent record, and shall, where
required by law, include a statement of findings and conclusions and the reasons or basis therefore,

All such decisions, together with any tape recording or transcript of testimony and deliberations and
any documents and exhibits offered to the Board, shall constitute the record of the proceedings and
shall be a public record, except as otherwise provided by law.

Notice of any decision, if required, shall be given as prescribed by law.

The Board may reconsider any decision at the same meeting or at a subsequent meeting within 15
days of its original decision, provided; however, that both a vote to reconsider and any action taken
pursuant thereto shall occur and be completed within said 15 days. The Board may conduct
additional hearings and receive additional evidence and testimony as provided herein.

Section 7. Conflict with Laws

Any conflict or inconsistency between these Bylaws and any applicable law shall be resolved in
favor of the law.

Section 8. Waivers; Amendments

These Bylaws, or any provision thereof, may be waived on any occasion by majority vote of the
Board unless otherwise provided by law. These Bylaws may be amended at any time in writing by
majority vote of the Board.,

Roles and Responsibilities of the Readfield Select Board, adopted June 3, 2010, amended August
30, 2010, amended July 6, 2011, amended February 13, 2012, amended October 10, 2012, updated
on October 21, 2013 with all amended dates listed above, amended February 10, 2014, amended
November 16, 2015, amended January 11, 2016.

18




Select Board for the Town of Readfield:

Valarie Pomerleau, Chair

Bruce Bourgoine

Chris Sammons

Signed this day of

2nd Reading Draft for 01-11-2016

Tom Dunham, Vice Chair

Allen Curtis

19




Rea_adfield Board of Selectmen
Janvary 11, 2016

ltem # 16-062

Proposal for process design and facilitation services for
The Readfield Community Process
to build a community consensus on town meetings
as revised 1/2/2016

The Readfield Select Board agreed as part of their goals setting and long range planning process
to design, undertake and complete a process to find a widely supported, legally sound solution
to the governance issues created with the change to a secret ballot. The process will include
citizens with different points of view plus assistance from appropriate professionals and it will
work to build a solution acceptable to a large majority of the community. The Board was
looking to rebuild the community’s trust in the political process and find a reasonable consensus
on how best to run the budget process and town meeting,

I would be delighted to work with the Board and any committees created for the process to help
design an effective process overall, develop the agendas for the various meetings involved,
provide facilitation for meetings and do notes from the meetings which I facilitate. I will bring
to the work my extensive background in meeting facilitation and design as well as my
background in serving in local government and working with numerous towns in Maine,

The Process: (a general sketch to be fully developed by the Process Committee)

Establish a Process Committee: The first step in the process will be to establish a small
working committee whose job would be to oversee the design of the process itself. The Process
Committee would start early in 2016 to work with the facilitator to develop the process. It
would meet occasionally during the process to make sure everything is going smoothly.

Establish a Recommendation Committee: There will be a second Committee created to
research, deliberate and come to agreement and to recommend a process for the budget process
and the town meeting that reflects a consensus in the community. The Recommendations
Committee would meet multiple times to deliberate and build agreement on recommendations.
Both committees will be made up of people who represent the different points of view in the
community as well as respected members of the community with relevant experience and/or
skills in building consensus.

Make Recommendations: The Recommendations Committee would make its
recommendations and there would be a community wide meeting to hear them and ask
questions and comment by the end of the summer of 2016.

Implementation: The Select Board will take the necessary steps to formally implement the
recommendations in the budget process and the Town Meeting format

Timeline:

2016:

Pamela Plumb & Associates Proposal for Readfield Community Process Page 1




Early in 2016 the Select Board will appoint the Process Committee, which will then
work with the facilitator to outline the steps in the process. Subsequently the Select
Board will appoint the Recommendation Committee.

In late winter or early spring hold a community meeting to introduce the process, bring
people together and ask people what is most important to them about the budget and
town meeting process.

In the spring and summer the Recommendations Committee will hold meetings to do
research on the issues and possible solutions, developing a recommendation by the end
of the summer.

In the fall of 2016 there would be another large community meeting to present the
recommendations and answer questions

Late fall the Select Board and Manager would receive, vote on the recommendations and
work on the steps to implement the recommendations.

2017
¢ By the beginning of 2017 the recommendations have been voted on by the Select Board
and are ready for implementation as part of the regular budget process and the June town
meeting,
Budget Estimate:

Pamela Plumb & Associates Proposal for Readfield Community Process Page 2

2 meeting with the Select Board 1) about the overall process and committee selection 2)
about the final recommendations and implementation [ kours with preparation and
Hotes|

3 meetings of the Process Committee (agreeing on the process and issues around
executing the process) |6 hours with preparation and notes)

2 large community meetings {one at the beginning and one on the Recommendations
Committee’s proposal) [8 hours with preparation and notes; assumes that community
people take responsibility for setting up facilities and food arrangements]

5 meetings of the Recommendations Committee [20 hours including preparation and
nofes, assuming 2 hour meetings]

39 hours x $90 an hour = $3510.00

A $1000 retainer would be paid up front and used to cover the initial work in the winter
and spring. Any work beyond what is covered by the retainer done by the end of June
will be billed before the end of the current fiscal year. The summer and fall work will be

billed after the completion of the work in the fall of 2016, which will fall in the next
fiscal year.




Town of Eliot
Referendum Town Meeting Oxdinance

Section 1) Title.
This ordinance shall be known as the “Town of Eliot Referendum Town Meeting Ordinance”.,

Seetion 2) Purpose.

a)
b)
c)
d)

The purpose of this ordinance is to:

Enhance the annual Town Meeting process by providing a reasonable overall plan
for a smooth transition from “Open Town Meeting” to “Referendum Town Meeting”.
Clarify, classify, and consolidate the number and make-up of appropriation articles
to be voted by referendum ballot.

Provide for the continued funding of existing municipal services, without
unnecessary disruption, in the event an appropriation article is not approved.
Reduce the number of articles to be voted on annually by granting to the Select Board
the continuing authority to act on routine administrative matters instead of voting on
them annuaily at town meeting, |

Section 3) Authority.

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the Home Rule authority granted the Town of Eliot pursuant
to article VIII, part 2, section 1 of the Constitution of the State of Maine and the laws of the State
of Maine, including without limitation Title 30-A, section 3001.

Section 4) Appropriation Articles for Referendum Ballot.
Each appropriation described in the following categories shall appear on the referendum ballot in

a single article, by category, as applicable:

LD 1 Exceed / Raise Question: 30-A MRSA Section 5721-A Limitation on Municipal Tax
Levy

Estimated Revenues
Administration
Hearings and Elections
Fire Department
Police Department
Public Safety (Individual Listings)
Public Health Oificer
Fire Hydrants
Ambulance Serv.

Dispatching
Harbor Master

09/10/2015 2:18 PM Page 1 of 7




Animal Control Officer
Strectlights

Public Works Department

Snow Removal

Summer Maintenance

Roads and Bridges

Transfer Station

Federal Storm Water Management Plan

Community Service Department

General Assistance

Capital Improvements (Individual Listings)

Reserve Accounts (Individual Listings)

Debt Service

Town Standing Committees (Individual Listing)

QOutside Agencies (Individual Listings)

Wm, Fogg Library
Section 5) Citizen’s Option Meeting.
Following the initial approval of the budget articles by the Select Board, the Town shall call a
Citizen’s Option Meeting of the registered voters of Eliot to review the recommendations of the
Budget Committee and the Select Board. The meeting shall follow the general town meeting
procedures pursuant to 30-A.M.R.S. 2524,
At the Citizen’s Option Meeting, an amendment for any budget article may be offered by any
registered voter and decided by a majority vote of those assembled. A minimum assembly size of
1% of the total number of registered voters at the commencement of the meeting and at all times
during the meeting is required in order to make any motion or amendment to the recommendations
of the Budget Committee or the Select Board. In the event that the Citizen’s Option Meeting fails

to attract the minimum assembly size to make amendments, the meeting shall be deemed an
“Informational Budget Hearing” and shall be conducted as such.

If the minimum assembly size is met, amendments shall be made by offering a written amendment
to the Moderator of the Citizen’s Option Meeting. A majority voie of those assembled is required

09/10/2015 2:18 PM Page 2 of 7

ey e




to approve a Citizen’s Option budget recommendation to be included on the ballot.

Reconsideration of an approved Citizen Option budget recommendation is not permitted.

Following the passage of any such amendment, the Budget Committee or Select Board may, at a
duly-called budget finalization meeting, may vote to accept the Citizen’s Option amendment(s)
as their own recommendation. If one or more of the Citizen’s Option budget amendments are not
accepted by the Budget Committee or the Select Board as their own recommendation, the Citizen
Option amendment(s) shall be placed on the ballot as a “Citizen's Recommendation.”

Section 6) Vote On Budget.
The budget shall be voted upon by a referendum vote and through separate articles consistent with

the proposed final budget format.

Bach appropriations article shall include the recommendations of the Select-Board, the Budget
Committee and the Citizen's Options (if any) along with a choice of "None of the Above”. In the
event that the Budget Committee and Select Board agree upon a budget recommendation of a
particular article, the form of the ballot shall indicate a singular budget appropriation
recommendation with the footnote, “Select Board and Budget Committee So Recommend.”

In the event that the Budget Committee and / or the Select Board agree with the Citizen’s
Recommendation for appropriation, the form of the ballot shall indicate a singular budget
appropriation recommendation with the appropriately adjusted footnote, “Select Board and / or
Budget Commiiitee and / or Citizens So Recommend.”

The dollar amounts of the Select Board, Budget Committee and Citizen's Recommendation shall
be shall be published on the ballot, as well as the vote counts of the Select Board, Budget
Committee and Citizen’s Recommendations. Each article on the ballot shall require a plurality of
the votes cast for any recommendation to be approved.

If an article is not approved by a plurality of votes, the appropriation for the immediately
preceding year shall constitute the appropriation for the following fiscal year.

Any appropriation article that is voted in the affirmative, and which contains two or more specific
sub-appropriations within said article, is restricted to the amounts specified in the sub-
appropriations as presented, which may not be moved, interchanged, or otherwise co-mingled in
any fashion without Legislative body re-appropriation authorization.

Section 7) Form of Ballot.
The form of the ballot shall be established by adoption of this Ordinance. The various possible

ballot forms are set forth herein.

Possibility #1
TWENTIETH — To see what sum the Town will raise, appropriate, and transfer for employee

salary, benefits, operation, and maintenance of Administration.

09/10/2015 2:18 PM Page 3 of 7




## Select Only One **

The Select Board Recommends $1,000,000 e
“4-1)

The Budget Committee Recommends $900,000

G-2)

Citizens’ Option $875,000

(57-22)

None of the Above —

Possibility #2
TWENTIETH — To see what sum the Town will raise, appropriate, and transfer for employee

salary, benefits, operation, and maintenance of Administration.
** Select Only One **

The Select Board and Budget Committee Recommend $1,000,000 P
(Select Board 4 - 1; Budget Committee 5 - 2)

Citizens’ Option $875,000 .
(57-22) ,
None of the Above _

Possibility #3
TWENTIETH - To see what sum the Town will raise, appropriate, and transfer for employee
salary, benefits, operation, and maintenance of Administration,

** Select Only One **

The Select Board Recommends $1,000,000
@4-1)

The Budget Committee and Citizens Recommend $900,000
(Budget Committee 5 - 2; Citizens 57 —22) S
None of the Above -

Possibility #4
TWENTIETH — To see what sum the Town will raise, appropriate, and transfer for employee

salary, benefits, operation, and maintenance of Administration.
## Select Only One **

The Select Board and Budget Committee Recommend $1,000,000 o
(Select Board 4-1 and Budget Committee 5-2)
None of the Above .

09/10/2015 2:18 PM Page 4 of 7




Section 8) Public Hearing Requirement.

The Select Board must properly post and advertise at least one informational Public Hearing on
the proposed Annual Budget no more than 30 days in advance of the Referendum Vote on the
Annual Budget. Summary budget information shall be made available to the public no less than
14 days prior to said required Public Hearing.

Section 9) Budget funding provision in the event an appropriation article is not approved.
In the event a previously approved appropriation article is not approved, the appropriation for the
immediately preceding year shall constitute the appropriation for the following fiscal year, in most
cases. In the event an appropriation article is not approved, the Town Manager shall review the
previous year’s budget appropriation for expenses that were one-time and / or non-recurring and
shall report same to the Board of Select Board for approval of an “adjusted” prior year budget.

The Select Board may call one additional referendum election in the same fiscal year to vote on
appropriation articles that were not approved. or that are for a similar purpose. The additional
referendum election shall take place within 90 days and the ballot shall include only the
recommendations of the Select Board, Budget Committee and None of the Above.

Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the Select Board from calling special “Open Town
Meetings” during the year as the need may arise from time to time to address unforeseeable issues,
funding emergencies, or issues beyond the normal course of town operations.

Section 10) Select Board’s Administrative Authority.
The Select Board shall be authorized to act on the following administrative matters usually acted

on annually at town meeting:

Taxes are due and payable at the time of the mailed demand. The Select Board is granted the
authority to set dates in the months of November and the following May as the dates when interest
on unpaid current tax amounts will begin to accrue.

To establish the rate of interest charged on each half of taxes after the November and May dates,
such rate of interest not to exceed the maximum rate as established annually by the State Treasurer.

To authorize the Select Board to set an interest rate to be paid on abated taxes for the fiscal year.

To authorize the Tax Collector to accept prepayments of taxes not yet committed, pursuant to 36
MRSA Section 506,

To authorize the Select Board, when Town Meeting is delayed into the next fiscal year, to spend
from Unassigned Fund Balance an amount per month not more than 1/12 of the appropriated
amount of the current budget until the required Town Meeting can be held.

To authorize the Select Board to annually execuie signatures as may be required to borrow funds

through Tax Anticipation Notes, if necessary for cashflow, and to pay interest on said Tax
Anticipation Notes from any general fund revenue

09/10/2015 2:18 PM Pago 5 of 7




To pay tax abatements and applicable interest granted during the fiscal year from the Overlay
account.

To authorize the Select Board to dispose of Town-owned personal property under such terms and
conditions as they deem to be in the best interest of the Town.

To authorize the Select Board, on behalf of the Town, to sell and dispose of any real estate acquired
by the Town for non-payment of taxes thereon, on such terms as they deem advisable and to
execute quitclaim deeds for such property. The Select Board must first request the advice of the

Conservation Commission.

To authorize the Select Board to receive insurance and/or other property damage restitution funds
and to expend said receipts for materials and labor to correct said damages without further

appropriations.

To authorize the Select Board to accept and appropriate or to reject any and all funds from grants,
donations, and reimbursements during the year for any Municipal Department, Committee,
Commission and/or project, to include but not limited to reimbursements from F.E.M.A. for any

State declared emergencies, Community Development Block Grants, donations for the parks, and
capital or program grants for Community Service Department.

To authorize the Select Board and Treasurer to borrow on notes or to appropriate money from
Unreserved Fund Balance for any further amount needed for snow removal.

To make final determinations regarding the closing or opening of roads to winter maintenance,
pursuant to 23 M.R_S.A. section 2953.

Section 11) Revocation of Ordinance.

This ordinance and all of its provisions shall continue and remain in effect untii such time as the
Select Board or a citizens’ petition calls for a referendum to resume Open Town Meeting or some
other form of Town budget approval as may be allowable by law. By adoption of this ordinance,
all prior Referendum Town Meeting ordinances are hereby repealed and superseded.

Section 12) Validity and Severability.

Should any section or provision of this ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, such
decision shall not invalidate any other section or provision of this ordinance.

Section 13) Effective Date.

The effective date of this ordinance shall be the date of adoption by the legislative body.

09/10/2015 2:18 PM Page 6 of 7




Municipal Officers’ Certification of Official Text of a Proposed Ordinance
[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To Wendy J. Rawski, Town Clerk of the Town of Eliot, Maine:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this certificate is a
true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Referendum Town Meeting Ordinance,
of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of the Town of Eliot, Maine, to transition from open
town meeting to referendum town meeting”, which is to be presented to the voters for their

consideration on November 3, 2015.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete text of
the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for distribution to the voters,
and you will ensure that copies are available at the town meeting/polling places on the day

of the vote.

Dated; 00///0{/920 1'3/

0/14/2015 2:18 PM Page 7 of 7




Readfield Board of Selectmen
January 11, 2016

Item # 16-066

TOWN OF READFIELD

8 OLD KENTS HILL RD. » READFIELD, MAINE 04355
Ter, (207) 685-4239 o Fax (207) 685-3420

ADMINISTRATIVE CONSENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Catherine Bruce, (herein as the “Property Owner™) of 1149 Main Street,
Readfield, Maine (herein as the “Town”), Assessor’s map120 lot 39 (herein as the “Lot™),
converted the Corner Café into a duplex family dwelling without the proper Town
permits. The Code Office took the appropriate action in notifing the owner and the
Municipal Officers of the violations pretaining to the Readfield Land Use Ordinances and
relevant Life/Safety Codes.The Violation Notice and Order dated December 1, 2015 was
reviewed by the Select Board, in which requested this Administrative Consent Agreement
to settle all pending violations at 1149 Main Street.

WHEREAS, the Property Owner agrees that Town permits were not received prior to
conmencement of the convertion, but shall apply for after-the-fact- permits and pay the
require fee; and

WHEREAS, the Property Owner has applied, paid and received “conditional” approval
- from the Planning Board to convert the property into a two family duplex,(see attached
Notice of Decision dated January 13, 2016) ; and

WHEREAS; the Property Owner has received permission from the Maine Department
of Transportation to relocated the building sump pump drain into the adjacent storm drain
as located in the DOT Drainage Connection Agreement date December 15, 2015,(see
attached agreement) and shall not allow the discharge of water to become a safety issue;
and

WHEREAS; the Property Owner shall commenced construction of changing out all
required windows to meet egress standards that meet Life Safety Codes as outlined by the
State Fire Marshall Office,(see attached Job Estimate); and

WHEREAS; the Property Owner did apply voluntarily for a Land Use Permit, Building
and Plumbing permits; and

WHEREAS, the Property Owner continued to allow occupancy without Town approval,
but has taken corective measures to fix some violations, at the request of the Town’s
Code Enforcement Officer; and




TOWN OF READFIELD

8 OLD KenTS HiLL Rp. * READFIELD, MAIRE 04355
Ter. (2073 685-4939 « FaX (207) 685-3420

WHEREAS; the Property Owner has demonstrated through documentation that she is in
fact hiring the services of professionals to bring the property up to standards for a two
family dwelling, three bedrooms each, unit; and

WHEREAS; there is no evidence before the Board of Selectmen that these violations
were willful or intentional; and

WHEREAS; the Property Owner has been cooperatwe in seeking relief from said
violations; and -

WHEREAS; there is evidence of economic benefit to the Property Owner resulting from
occupancy violations; and

WHEREAS; Atticle 2 Section 2.C of the Town Land Use Ordinance adopted June 9,
2015 and effective at the time of said violations authorizes the Board of Selectmen to
“...enter into administrative consent agreements for the purpose of eliminating violations
of this Ordinance and recovering fines without court action”, and the Property Owner
meets the conditions for relief set forth in Section 2.C.

NOW THEREFORE; The Town and Property Owner agree as follows:

1. Property Owner agrees to pay a civil penalty to the Town in the amount of $400.00, .
with the completion date of & /. § /2016 and receives an Occupancy Permit, This (f;
penalty shall be paid within thirty (30} days of the issuance of the Occupancy Permit.

2. Property' Owner may complete construction of the above-described duplex family &
dwelling as conditionly approved by the Readfield Planning Board on December 9, 2015. ¢

3. Property Owner or anyone under the contract, hire, or direction of the Property Owner, ©
may not create any new or additional non-conformity in the development of this property &
beyond those specifically approved as part of this Agreement.

4. The Town agrees to relinquish its right to prosecute the Property Owner for the above- Cb
described land use violation in consideration of the payment of the penalty in (1) above;




TOWN OF READFIELD
8 OLD KENTS HiLL RD. ® READFIELD, MAINE 04355
TeL. (207) 685-4939 « Fax (207) 685-3420

EXCEPT THAT, if the Property Owner breaches the terms of this Agreement, the Town

may then institute the $100 a day fine as provided in the LUO and Title 30-A, M.R.S.A. , b
Section 4452 with any Court cost and Legal fees and all appropriate proceedings to

enforce the provisions of the Town Land Use Ordinance.

5. As a condition of the consideration promulgated by this Administrative Consent

Agreement for the Town to waive prosecution, the Property Owner agreesto: (1) waive
and forego any action of any kind against any Town Officer and members of the Town LB
Board of Selectmen; and (2) waive.any right to appeal, whether to the Superior Court or
otherwise, either the substance or contents of this Administrative Consent Agreement or

the decision of the Planning Board and/ or Select Board as rendered.

Done and dated at Readfield, Maine Accepted and dated at Readfield, Maine
this & dayof Taw. 2016 this ¢ dayof _ Jon vy 2016
Town of Readfield :

Selectman Catherine Bruce

+

6‘\6‘{&“& Motrieed by - oL Lind
- HOTARY PUBLLC NAE
' | Q ﬂ w WY COMMISSION EXPIRES 51320 |

\
Selectman \

Selectman

-Sefectman




Readfield Board of Selectmen
January 11, 2016

Town OfReadﬁeld ltem # 16-073

Asa Gile Hall 2™ Floor Use/Rental Agreement

Asa Gile Hall is an 1832 building owned by the citizens of the Town of Readfield
and is the seat of municipal government for the Town and is known as the Town Office.
The second floor of the building lends itself for use by government entities, non-profit**
organizations and for-profit organizations.

The second floor is one large room and is accessible to the handicapped by means of
an elevator and a handicap accessible restroom on the 2™ floor. There is also a large stage
and a small kitchen facility. Parking is available within the parking lot or along Old Kents
Hill Road as well as in the Town-owned lot across Route 17.

The first floor of Asa Gile Hall is used for municipal services and is not available for

rental.

The second floor is available for use in order of priority as follows:

% Select Board and subordinate boards and committees of municipal
government. The Seclect Board or one of the subordinate boards or
committees may find it necessary to “bump” a non-municipal group that has
reserved the second floor space, in the event that the second floor space is
needed by them on the date for which it has been reserved by the non-
municipal group.

% Non-profit* organizations whose membership is primarily composed of
Readfield residents.

¢ Non-Readfield governmental entities.

% Non-profit* organizations whose membership is composed primarily of
non-Readfield residents

% Organizations or individuals who are sponsoring a for-profit event.

An individual or organization, the "user", who reserves the second floor will be
responsible for ensuring that the terms and conditions of this agreement are followed and
assume liability for any damage done to the building and grounds.

The user agrees to the following terms:

1.

The user will be responsible for maintaining a safe environment and will be held
liable for unsafe practices that result in litigation. The Town of Readfield will not
be liable for any accidents or incidents occurring during the use of Asa Gile Hall
except for Town business.

The premises may not be used for any illegal purposes.

. Repeat use may be denied to any group which has not demonstrated appropriate

conduct and care.

Application for use of the second floor is to be made through the Town office.

A key for admittance may be secured from the Town office. Asa Gile Hall shall be
locked at the conclusion of an activity if the activity for which the second floor is
to be used ends after normal Town Office business hours. The key shall be
deposited in the mailbox immediately after use. A key that is not returned to the

1

Amended32-3-12 01-11-2012
M:cclerk2:gilehalirental

e




Town of Readfield

Asa Gile Hall 2" Floor Use/Rental Agreement

Town Office shall result in a $10 fee plus any costs, which might result from
re-keying the building. The Town Office will not give out a key over night to any
organization or individual without expressed permission of Select Board.

6. The user shall be responsible for immediately returning the second floor to the
same condition it was in prior to its use._Failure to meet this condition shall
result in the loss of some or all of the $25 security deposit, at the discretion of
the Town Manager.

7. The user shall not puncture the walls and wooden surfaces of the second floor in
any way by the use of thumbtacks, tape or other objects or in any other way
deface or mark the building or grounds.

8. The user shall pay the security deposit, rental fee, if any, and complete the
"Agreement for Use of Asa Gile Hall" at the time the second floor is reserved. In
the event the scheduled activity is cancelled or another priority takes precedence
for the use of the second floor, the security deposit and rental fee shall be
returned._Security deposits or portions thereof shall be returned within 30 days of
satisfactory inspection of the premises following a rental.

9. Smoking is prohibited in Asa Gile Hall.

10. Alcohol of all types is prohibited on Town premises.

11. As per fire code, a 99-person limit max is allowed without tables; a 49-person
limit max is allowed with tables.

12. As a condition for using the second floor of Asa Gile Hall, all users shall sign a
Release and Indemnification for Liability on Town of Readfield Property.

The fees for renting the second floor of Asa Gile Hall shall be as follows:

1. All rentals shall be subject to a refundable $25 security deposit. exclusive
of municipal users. :

+2.Select Board and other municipal boards and committees of the Town of
Readfield: free.

2-3 Non-profit* organizations whose membership is composed mostly of Readfield
residents: free.

3.4 Non-Readfield governmental entities: free

4.5 Non-profit * organizations whose membership is composed mostly of non-
Readfield residents: $25 per four hours; $50 per eight hours or longer per day. **

5.6.0rganizations or individuals who intend to charge admittance and earn a profit:
$50 per four hours; $100 per eight hours or longer day.**

é-7.Non-resident applicants may be approved at the discretion of the Town Manager
or his designee.

* “Non-profit” shall mean organizations that either make no charges, or cover only out of
pocket expenses.

** Waiver of fees for use of Asa Gile Hall may be made at the discretion of the Town Manager
or designee.

Amended-12-3-£2 01-11-2012
M:cclerk2:gilehalirental




Town of Readlfield

Asa Gile Hall 2" Floor Use/Rental Agreement

Non-Profit Organization Name:

__Mun. Bd/Comm __Non Prof/Read Res __Non Prof _ Govt. __ Profit
Free Free $25/4 Hrs- Free $50/4 Hrs
- $50/8 Hrs+ $100/8 Hrs+
Security Deposit $25

Contact Person for said Organization:

Mailing Address.

Tel #:

Date Requesting: Time:

Brief description of event/use:

1 have been provided with/read and understand the Agreement/Use Guidelines and
agree to abide by all said guidelines/restrictions.

Date Signature

Amended32-342 01-11-2012
M:eclerk2:gilehalirental




Town of Readfield

Asa Gile Hall 2" Floor Use/Rental Agreement

Release and Indemnification
For
Liability on Town Property

In consideration of the Town of Readfield, Muaine permitting the undersigned to use or accupy

Readficld TownBeaeh the second floor of Gile Hall, for the following purpose:

, On the day of ' , 20,
and in addition to such other consideration as may be agreed, the undersigned hereby releases and forever
discharges the Town and its officials, agents and empiayees from all suits, claims and demands ~ whatsoever,
including for negligence, which he or she or his or her heirs or assigns may ever have for any personal or bodily
injury, death or property damage arising out of or resulting from, in whole or in part, activities during the use of

| the premises as described above.

The undersigned further agrees, for him or herself and his or her heirs and assigns, to defend
and indemnify the Town and its officials, agents and employees against all such suits, claims and demands by
any third party, including invitees and others, and to save them forever harmless there from, and upon demand, fo
obtain liability insurance in a form and amount satisfactory to the Town.

The undersigned hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands this release and
Indemnification, and that if he or she Is signing on behalf of another person or entity, he or she is authorized to do
so and that such other person or entity intends to be fully bound hereby.

Date Signature
Printed Name
For:
Before me,
Witness Signature
4

Amended12-3-12 01-11-2012
M:cclerk2:gilehallrental




Readfield Board of Selectmen
January 11, 2016

ltem # 16-074

Responsibilities of the Select Board:

Shori-term

1. Implement the recommendations of the 2004 Readfield Corner Revitalization Study to
make new commercial development in the village more attractive. (Policy 3.3)
Investigate special assessments as a means to raise revenue. (5.12)

2. Create a committee and appropriate funds for a study to determine municipal building
needs. (5.1)

3. Improve planning for capital expenditures through an annually updated Capital
Improvements Program (CIP). (5.11)

4. Finance open space acquisition and improvements through impact fees or other sources
as recommended in the Open Space Plan. (5.12)

5. Review and consolidate the town’s two Road Ordinances (6.1). Modify the ordinances,
as necessary, to reduce impacts on visual character and the natural environment, (9.7)

6. Petition the Federal Emergency Management Agency to amend Readfield's floodplain
maps to reflect more accurately the location of floodplains in the community when new
floodplain information becomes available. (9.3)

7. Participate in and implement the Maranacook Lake Watershed Management Plan. (9.14)

8. Seek funding to create a Torsey Pond Watershed Management Plan. (9.14)

9. Update Readfield’s Floodplain Management Ordinance. (9.3)

Mid-term

1. Seek partnerships with Manchester and other municipalities to pursue regional housing
projects that will benefit Readfield citizens. (Policy 4.2)

2. Provide land or other incentives, as applicable, for the construction or rehabilitation of
affordable housing. (4.2)

3. Adopt standards governing the conversion of seasonal dwellings to year-round dwellings
and single-family dwellings to multi-family {or accessory) units. (4.4)

4. Review each of the town's ordinances and regulations. Repeal or update ordinances as
appropriate. (5.6)

5. Annually recognize individual volunteers who have made significant contributions of
their time to town activities. (5.9)




Promote the devélopment of a park-and-ride lot in a central location in Readfield perhaps
in conjunction with other traffic and parking improvements. (6.3)

Work with the state to establish reasonable controls on motorized traffic on Maranacook
Lake, Torsey Pond, Echo Lake and Lovejoy Pond. (7.1)

Prepare for implementation prior to July 1, 2012 of the statewide Maine Uniform
Building and Energy Code.

Long-term

Work with the school board to undertake long-term school facilities planning. (Policy
5.12)

Investigate the feasibility of turning some solid waste activities over to the private sector.
(5.5) '

Establish a protocol for the acquisition and management of dams in coordination with
other towns as appropriate. (9.16)

Consider acquisition of the Augusta Water District property if, and when, the District (or
its successor) decides to divest. (9.15)

Ongoing

Support the Historical Society financially and in-kind in its educational and research
efforts by assisting in finding exhibition and research space, assisting in additional
inventory efforts and assisting in nominations for buildings or sites to the National
Register of Historic Places. (Policy 1.3)

Continue to support the Economic Development Committee. (3.3)

Support efforts to establish a local or regional community land trust for affordable
housing. (4.2)

Establish written job descriptions for boards and committees to be distributed by the
Select Board or the Town Manager. Require that boards and committees utilize these
descriptions. (5.6)

Strongly suggest that each board and committee periodically review its administrative
procedures to assure predictable timeframes and cost-effective decision-making. (5.6)

Encourage residents to volunteer for local boards, committees and activities. (5.9)




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Request from the Fire Department an annual assessment of fire equipment and the need
for future replacements or upgrades. (5.12)

Continue to plan for long-range solid waste disposal and recycling needs. (5.12)

Work closely with the Maine Department of Transportation to set appropriate speed
limits on state and local roads. (6.2)

Continue to support the expansion and maintenance of the snowmobile trail network
through snowmobile registration fee reimbursements from the state, donations from
individuals and businesses and state and federal grant funding. (7.2)

Maintain communications with owners of private recreation resources and work
cooperatively to address issues of public use. (7.4)

Retain public casements for recreational purposes on discontinued town roads in the
future. (6.4,7.6)

Encourage owners of farmland, significant open space and forestlands to participate in
the farm, open space and tree growth tax programs. (8.2)

Work with adjoining communities to address issues of common concern such as
watershed and open space protection and minimizing conflicts in growth and rural area
designations. (9.10, 9.16)

Continue membership in the Cobbossee Watershed District (CWD) and Kennebec Land
Trust (KLT) and continue to work with other organizations devoted to protection of
natural resources in Readfield. (9.10, 9.13, 9.16)

Hold the Readfield Heritage Days on an annual basis, in conjunction with the Heritage
Days Committee (5.10)

Encourage the use of and pride in historic sites such as the Union Meeting House and the

Jesse Lee Church. (1.2)




Readfield Board of Selecimen
January 11, 2016 E

ltem # 16-075
Library Building Committee

May 23, 2011 Selectboard Meeting

Motion by Mr. Tolman to authorize the Town Manager to seek volunteers for the Library
Building committee, to consist of 2 members from the library board, 1 member from the
Select Board, 1 contractor resident, the librarian and 2 additional citizens, to start work
within 6 weeks and spend up to one year on business. The charge of the committee is to
evaluate the current building situation, to consider the needs as reported by the library
board, to investigate possible building scenarios that could include renovation of current
structure, a completely new structure either on same site or a different site, or a partial
renovation/expansion and partial new building, or move to an existing building, and to
report back to the Town their findings, with a date for recommendation to the Select
Board by February 2013 so that it could be considered for the Town Meeting warrant in
2013, second by Mr. Perry; vote unanimous 4-0-0,

May 19, 2014 Selectboard Meeting

Motion by Mrs. Reay take the library building committee out of order, second Mr. Dunn;
vote 5-0-0.

Bruce Bourgoine distributed a written report to the board. He gave a summary of the
activities in the past, an update of the current progress and the expected upcoming steps.
The previous report was given on 3/25/2013. He requested the select board direct the
town manager to explore the actual costs of purchasing and leasing and other associated
costs with the former Bank of Maine building. There was a discussion. Ray Renner said
taking over the bank would remove a tax base from the town. Bruce said hopefully the
old building would be sold and eventually become taxable property but he acknowledged
it would not be a wash. The number of patrons was discussed.

Motion by Mr. Dunn to direct the town manager to work with the Bank of Maine to
discuss the purchase cost and/or lease fees and also a possible scenario of the
maintenance fees, second Mr. Durgin; there was a discussion. The time frame was
discussed. The committee will research retrofit costs when more solid information is
available. Vote 5-0-0.




Library Building Committee
Outline of Oral Report for 5/19/14

Formation about two years ago
Who we are (thanking members for their time and input)

o Deborah Peale
Brenda Lake
Tom Dunham
Anita Buss
Larry Dunn
Bruce Bourgoine
Ex officio: Librarian Nancy O'Toole, Town Manager Stefan Pakulski

o And we are in the process of adding two more members
We engaged in work with the Library Board of Trustees to explore options due to long term
concerns with ongoing building maintenance and adequacy for usage and programs at the
present building to serve the 600 and growing number of patrons
A report was made in March 2013 concluding that a new library building would be the best
possible option based on a number of factors from an ongoing maintenance standpoint and
having a space designed to serve community library needs
We were asked to continue our work in what would be a multi-year process to plan next steps
for consideration and we were further asked to return with an update this year.
In the last year we our focus has been on making a better determination on what kind of
building would best serve Readfield. Pursuant to that end we worked with UMA architecture
students to look at different possible concepts that included new building options and
renovation options.
Our next steps planned but unrealized at this point included a better sense of the building
design work that would likely require an initial investment and exploring partnership funding
potential and possibilities.
During this process, a single-story commercial building of approximately 200 more square
feet with excellent parking and importantly to all involved in the town center, formerly Bank
of Maine, was vacated and I contacted the bank.
While this was an unplanned situation that unexpectedly opened up, it presented an
opportunity that should be given due diligence simply because of the aforementioned factors.
The bank indicated that it would be interested in discussing a sale to the town and some sort
of structured arrangement that include a mortgage from the bank, a rent or lease arrangement
of the ATM along with a payment of a maintenance fee aimed at net benefit that would result
in our costs being comparable to a 0% loan.
We made arrangements to undertake a site visit to ascertain that the building was worth
exploring and to begin developing what building factors needed further exploration. We are
ready to begin vetting the building’s adequacy, any retrofitting needs and any operating and
ongoing maintenance cost efficiencies.
At this point we are suggesting that the Select Board direct a representative such as the Town
Manager to work with the bank to explore the actual costs of a purchase and the leasing of the
ATM and maintenance fees that might be paid as income from the bank.
The building committee during this time would work to develop a firm cost comparison
based on operating cost and maintenance of the bank to be considered along with retrofit
costs.
Parallel to the building exploration we have started to examine how we could develop a
possible fundraising partnership that would assist the town with any project, Pursuant to this
we have been working with a dormant group “Friends of the Library” to reactive the group’s
301(c)(3) tax exempt status and that process is currently underway.
Thank you.

O 00 0 00

g




Readfield Library Building Advisory Com. Roster 01/07/2016
11:58 AM Page 1
2-lib Members, 1-SB, 1-contractor, 2 add.citizens and Librarian Adhoc Com.
Name Bourgoin, Bruce Title Library Building Com.
Address
E-Mail
Work
Name Buss, Anita H. Title Library Building Com. Member
Address 225 Torsey Shores Rd. '
Readfield ME 04355
E-Mail anitabuss@yahoo.com
Work
Home (207)685-4047
Cell
Other
Name Clark, Lori Title Chair, Library Building Com.
Address 459 Winthrop Road
: Readfield ME 04355
E-Mail Ikclark@fairpoint.net
Work
Home (207)377-4875
Cell
Other
Name Dunham, Thomas Title Library Building Com. SB Liason
Address PO Box 252
Kents Hill Maine 0434904355
E-Mail tadunhamandsons@myfairpoint.net
Work (207)685-4524
Name Lake, Brenda Title Library Building Com. Alt,
Address 78 Tallwood Drive
Readfield ME 04355
E-Mail bblake@gmail.com
Work
Home (207)685-3529
Cell (207)242-5996

Other




Readfield Library Building Advisory Com. Roster 01/07/2016
11:58 AM Page 2
2-lih Members, 1-SB, 1-contractor, 2 add.citizens and Librarian Adhoc Com.
Name Massey, Joyce Title Library Building com. Member
Address 79 Macomber Road
PO Box 367
Readfield Maine 04355
E-Mail jmasseyx@aol.com
Work adhoc committee, no terms
Home
Cell (207)333-8715
Other
Name Mohlar, Gwen Robetson Title Library Building Com. Alt.
Address 339 South Road
Readfield ME 04355
E~-Mail pgmohlar@roadrunner.com
Work
Home (207)685-9027
Cell (207)441-5074
Other
Name O'Toole, Nancy Title Library Building Com. Librarian
Address
Readfield Maine 04355
E-Mail readfieldlibrarian@readfield.lib.me.us
Work (207)685-4089
Home
Cell (978)387-5915
Other
Name Peale, Deborah Title Library Building Com. Member
Address 42 Mooer Road
Readfield ME 04355
E-Mail solarmd@hotmail.com
Work
Home (207)685-3811
Cell

Other




Readfieid Board 6f Selectmen

January 11, 2016

Item # 16-076

Suuue|d 3 Sulum ueln m Buiuue|d 1 Sunupa Jueig B

asueusiulepy [edPIUNN B JoueuIUIR [ediDuny &

saupuncg m saUpunog o

uBadiojUy apo} B JUSHUD2I05U] SpOD =

Juissassy = Bupssassy

1dinb3 oo = 1dinb3g 2240 m

a3ueInsu| M 20URINSU] W

uopRenSIuIWPY B uonesIsIu Py m

135an9 L10¢ 135dnd 910¢

%ZT'T 00'ZST'S$ OO'EET'YOP$ OP'OZE'STZ $ 00°9L0°65¢ $ €E£04S5'6vP $  000TS'0SP §  28°600°Zb0 $

%00 000 00'00S'T 000 00°D0S°'T 9TeSP'T 00°00S°T £8°688 a0ue)sissy bullesH pz
%00 000 00°005°¢ 000 000082 00°0 00°00S°C 000 Bujuueld 3 BURMAL JURID 09
%S0~ 00°SE0°E- 00°048'TL #0°0F9'6T 00°506'vL 0T'6v0'19 00°95%°04 [4: )4 ald"] SoueUAUEK JedPIUNK 05
%00°09- 00°005'T- 00'000°T 000 00'005°C 00'0 00°000°T 00°0p2'C solpunogd o
%bLT 00°10S 00°2¥2'6C 9£°GT19°ST 00'9pL'8¢ £5°€80'/2 00°'SPL°TE £p'2e9'sl JuaWszIoU3 B3P O
%e891 00°009'€ 00°000'ST PO L TT 00'00%°'T2 6/'861'92 00°'S£6°TE 62'SES' /T bulssassy gz
%t 00'SkT 00°0S9'E 96°009°C 00°50S°€E £F'605°T 00°'SS6'€E 08'829°Z dinb3 S0WG 5T
%Z9°95 00°9G6'ET 00°909'8¢ 687281/ 00°059'F2 0L'2£0'PC 00°052'1C £0'T2£°T2 fueInsu] g1
%b8¢- 00°015'8- 00°098'062 LL6ER'THT 00°'0££°66€C 8¥'66T'L0E 00°627°96¢ 85°'690°50€ uopensjuwpy o1

% L102-6L0C % ZL02-9102 139ANd L10T AlA9T0Z 139aNd 9T0T TVNLIV STOZ 1390Nd STOT TYNLOVY ¥TOT NOISIAIG
LNIINNYIAOD TVHINGO 0

9102 ‘11 Aenuep
uawloa|es Jo pieog



pieog mc__._cm_n_ - pleog Suluueld B

SIPULULLIOY UOITEAIDSUDD) B PO UOIEAISSUO) B

s|eaddy jo pieog & sieaddy Jo preog B
139dn4a L10¢ 139ang 910¢
%56 (00zZ) $ o00EL'L $ 65592 $ 00SkS'L $ e6v8rZy ¢ o00bI'6 $ £6'0£9's $
%09°¢- 00es - 00'T0LE O'8eL 00°eLL'C £P'618 00°ELLE 6+'209°¢ p-e0d Duluueld gg
%00'0 000 00'59Ep 6T°LE5 00'S9E'p 89°STH'E 00'092'S 1042 SSWILIOT) UORBAISSUOD qT
%00°0- oo - 00°L0F 00’0 a0 L0 8L’ - 00°£09 00°£¢E sleaddy Jo pJeog g1
% LLOZ-6L0T $ Z10Z-9L0Z 13DANG LT0E AlA9T0Z 135and 9107 TYNLVYSTOT J139aN4a STOT TVNLV ¥10Z NOISIAIQ

SNOISSININOD ? SAWVOd S)

9102 ‘| Arenuep
uaLuoajeg jo pleog



UEURIUIRIN & gaueualuIRAl B

Aragn = AMexans

[EET) lleH 3o m

UG[EIS U4 & uopels i s

139and L10¢ 139anNa 9102
%06'Z- (0O'PEO'T) $ O00'PZO'PE & SSOPTOT $ O00'80L'GE $ OC'P68'SE ¢ O00°ZLE0S 4 PB'6ER'SE $
%00°0 000 00005 T 000 0000571 — el'llS 00°0058T 6 0GE'T SDUBUSIUIEW (f
%00'T - 0085 - 00°'ZEE's e 19Tt 00°98£’S 91'/65'6 00'6£0°01 £1°016'6 Aeiqn o¢
%bb0 - 0008 - 00'ZF0'8T 95°869'S 00'zZe1'st 00'$S8°LT 00°'818'TC 0T ¥69'LT iIeH 2119 gz
%Ib'8- 00006 - 00°008'6 227981 00°'00£°0T P98’ 00"086°01 891886 uenels a8d g1
% ZL0Z-610Z  $ .L0Z2-9L0Z 13DANHd £LT0T dLASTO0Z 139ang 970 TYNLOV STOZ 1390n4 STOT TYNLDY +TOZ NOISIAIG

910z ‘11 Arenuer
usuD3|9g Jo pieog

SONITTINA NMOL 02



%98°Cl 00°0ST 007005 000 00°05E TZ'0CT 00°00S S9°0EE 39V 0€-02

%lb' 00'519- 00°0ST'ET 78K 00°S9L'ET 80'556'ST 00°0LFCT 78'8ES'PT VD14 02-0¢
TINNOSH3d
288"/ 00'00S°E 00'006"LP 68" TH1°9C 00°00F"bk 9/'S68'6E 00" v08' T SEOER6E FINVUNSNI
%00" 000 000 89 000 00'0 000 000 dWOD SUTHHOM 08-5T
%00°00T 00°00%'T 00°00b'T 000 000 000 000 0070 INAWISHNAWITY HLTV3H ST-ST
%ELY 00°001°C 00'005'9 TT'SET9Z 00°00F '+ 9/'568'6E 00°+08'T SE9EP'6E ADNYHNSNI HLTv3IH 02-ST
FONVHNSNI
%G8 00'0S£'T- 00°0SEPE b6°SPT9T 00"001'9€ 99'5/90€ 00°0S+ T SETOT L NOLLVY1SININGAY
%00°00T- 00'002- 00'0 16'92€ 00002 T2 10E 00°002 ££°861T SNOLLATHOSENS 06-01
900" 00'0 00°00E 0070 00"00€ 62'THT 00°05¢ BS'6TE SUIFLNMIOA S8-0T
%00" 00°0 00°005 00°Zze 00°005 00°£5€ 00°000'T 00°5SE SAINTYIINOD ¥ DNINIVHL 08-0T
_ 9%00°001- 00°00¢- 000 000 00"00€ 00°0 000 S6'E6€ uopuBoosy sakojdw3 4S 8/-0T
%00" 000 00°000°¢ TLETYT 00°000'c - 1¥'659°C 00°000°C S0°90S'T plecqpses L£-01
SYeEE|
%00" 00'0 00'00Z'E 00942 00'002'€ 00 LLYE 00°0SLT 00+80°C 4O AY1SIDTY - ONIQUODIY S2-0T
%00 000 00°0S£'T 00°0 00'084'T L2709 00°005'1 799891 JompB[smeN §9-0T
%L9"9T 00'00S 00005’ . £0°S8. 00'000°E £0"99€°E 00'005T 90" /87t A9¥1S0d 09-0T
%STY 00'052- 00°0S4°€ bBTITE 00°000'% [6'996'C 00°0SLE §5'122'C SAT1ddNS 321440 SS-01
%00" 00'0 00'00T Sh ez 00°00T 86'¢ST 00'05¢ (8T "JSIN 05-0T
%00" 000 00'0S£°€ 007952 00'0S/°E 00°295E 00'005"E LV PE9'E : SAIHSYIAWIN S#-0T
%00" 0070 0070009 4.3 JA 83 000009 6079LL'Yy 00°000°C 106202 SNOILDT1R 0€-0T
%00" 00'0 00005 000 00'005 0070 00008 0070 NOILYONd3a S¢-01
%ITTI- 00"000°T- 00°000°8 STeL's 0070006 T1°Z/59 00°000°0Z 9/°809'0¢ S334 AANYOLLY 02-0T
%0005~ 00'005- 00°005 00°0 00'000°T et 00054 T£7€96 1H0d3d IYNNNY ST-0T
%00’ 00’0 00°00S 96°696 00°00S 6L'6L5T 007005 6T°61F ONISILY3AQY 01-0T
NOLLVY1SININAY
uonesIWPY / INJWNYIAOD TWd3INTD 0T-0T :AIQAdeQ
9% abueydy  $ abueyd [erur aia 18bpng [enpy 12bpng jeny
png un) png LinD L10¢ 9T0¢ 9102 S10¢ STO0C ¥10C

sanbay pur  sa bay aug

asuadxgy
T abeq iNd 90:T
910¢/L0/10 Hoday 1obpng woisn) PIoUpESY




ANIVIN “dIvdT

Y%L LT- 00°05¢- 0070021 QE" L 00°0SH'T S5°0/6 00°0SH"T 86'629°T ‘NOLLYY3dO dInd3
%00"001- 00°052- 000 000 00'0S2 000 00052 000 LINIVIN 8 dI¥d3d dINO3 ID14H0 02-09
%00 000 00°00Z'T SE' LD 00°002'T S5°046 00°00Z°T 86'675'T INTVIN B ¥IVdTd "3LNdIWOD 0T-09
INIVIN “dIvd3d ‘NOILYY3IdO dIn03
SAJIAAAS
%L9ST 000E7'2 00°52/'ST 01’8/ 00"56S'ET LFTL0PTE 00°569°€T 18°2EFF1 1DVHINOD
%00°04T 00°00Z 0070021 00'S61 00008 00'05¥ 00°05F 00'0S# ONILLSOH g3Mm §6-05
JLSVM
%00" 000 00°0SZ'T 0070 0070521 SL8IT'T 00°000°T £6'895°T SNOQUVZYH QCH ISNOH T6-08
%00° 000 0005 00°0 00°05 00°0 00705 00’9 VSOdSIA FHLL 98-05
%SEY 00'042 00'000'9 01°¢8.'s 00°0S£'S TL08'S 00°002's 88°/17'S 1d0ddns ¥31N4WOD §52-05
%00° 000 00'S66't 00°000°E 00'566'F 00°566't 00°566' 00'008'F SADIAYAS L1any 02-0S
%8E°ZTT 00°081°1 00'0£2'e 00'0 00°0S0°T 0070002 000002 00°06E'2 SAY0D3Y 4O NOLLVHOLSTY ST-0S
SAITAUIS LIVIINOD
%00' 0070 00°00L'% SLOPTT 00'00L % ST'165'% 00'00L% 99'099F SILLITLLN
%00' 000 00700 SLO0bTT 00'00L ST'T6Sy 00°00L'% 99'099'F ANOH4ITEL 08-0F
SALLTILLN
%00" 000 00700/ 00'SZ1Z 00°004'F 00°00F'p 00'00£L'% 00'00F' dNAdILS
%00 000 00°0SZ’y 00'SZ1°C 00°0SZ°'y 00°0SZ'b 00°05¢°F 00'05¢2’ NIWLDIITIS 05-52
%00’ 000 00"00€ 000 00'00¢ 00'0 00°00€ 00'0 Y3IDIH40 H1TVAH 0£-52
%00" 000 00°0ST 000 007057 00°0ST 00"0ST 00°0ST J19V.LSNOD 02-52
ANIdLLS
%415 0006’6 00'582'281 ¥£7092'58 00'sZZ'z6T 68'+65°2TC 00°0££'88T £E'905°E6T TANNOSY3d
9%50"89- 00'S90°T- 007005 SC6TF 00'595°T £2°50€°T 00°085'T 05°8p5°1 Nv1d NOLLDI.LOWd JWODINI 59-0T
%LEE- 00°02'S- 00005551 6 vEL'DL 00°0Z6'091 P ees'LLT 00'052"£57 8£°06/'00T SADVM 09-02
DHEE EE- 00°005- 00°000'T 61'65F 00°008’T ETEZTHT 00°0SH'T 59°819°T SUOL g SBedllg WL 05-02
%E9'/T- 00"06+'2- 00°GE9'TT ¥8PSTL 00'SZT'#T 06°946'ST 00°080°FT ECSTLYT INIWITHILY Ob-02
Ad.INQD uopensiuwpy / | NGWNYIA0S TWH3ANTD 01-0T :Aafidsg
% abueyd $ ebuey lemu] alA 1ebpng lenpy 1eb6png [enioy
png 1N png no LTOZ 910¢ 910¢C ST0C ST0¢ +10¢
shbayur  sabayuur
asuadxgy
Z 9bed Wd 90:T
910¢/£0/10 Hoday 39b6png wojsn) plaLpeaY



aseyaIng/ases

%I 00°SHT 00'059°S 96'009'Z 00°S0S'E [F60S'T 00°SS6'E 08'829°¢ wdinb3 0o
INIWIADV1dIY
%00’ 00’0 00°0SZ'T 00°'SLP'T 00°05Z'T L6°69T 000041 00"96€ INIWdINDT
%00" 00’0 007005 000 00'00S £6'69T 00°00S 00'0p INIWLINO3A TVLIdvD 0£-59
%00" 00'0 00052 00'S/H'T 0005/ 00'0 00°002'T 00°95¢ JHYMAEYH HILNdWOD 0T-59
ANTWIDIVIdIY INTWLINDI
LNIVIN “dIvd3d
YET'S 00001 000502 Sb'896 00°056'T 05v+0T 00°056'T 087761 ‘NOLLYY3dO dInd3
%ET'S 00°00T 00°050'¢ 9'996 00°056°T 05¥0'C 00'056'T 08'/26'T S3ASYa1 LNIWAIND3 301440 52-09
AINIVId “dT¥dId ‘NOLLYYIJO dINd3
%S T 00°Sk 00°0SE 05'/ST 00'SOE 00°562 00°50¢ 00'50¢ NOLLVAISINIWNGY
%G PT 00°s 00°05E 05°/ST 00"SOE 00'5S6¢ 00°50¢ 00°S0¢ 19V1S0d 09-0T

NOLLVYISINIWAY
aseyaind/asea 1dinb3 SoW0 / INFWNAIA0D TWHINID ST-0T :Aafidsg

%2995 DD'9S6'ET 00'909°8€ 68°281°/2 00°059'FZ 042202 00°052'12 L0°TLLTE SoUeINSUL
%2995 0D'9S6'ET 00'909°8¢€ 68'281'/2 00'0S9°+C 042202 00°0S2'1Z L0°TLLTE JONVINSNI
%G9°/SE 00'90E T 00°90£'8T 15126 00'000% £5'862'9 00°05Z £2°025°E dIWOD SHINHOM 08-ST
%BITET- 00°05¢- 00°00E'Z ge1e 00°059°C €T°661 007005°C PELET'T INTFWAOTAININN 09-5T
%00° 000 0000081 00°0bL LT 00°000'81 00°085°ZT 00'000°8T 00°ETT'LT ALTIIGYIT 8 ALY3dCdd 0451
FONVINSNI
soueInsu] / INJWNYIAOD WHIANID 2T-0T :Adfdsg
%b8Z- 00°015"8- 00°098°062 LL'6E8'THT 00°0££'662 8H'661°20€ 00'6Z1'962 85'690'50€ uogensiuiwpy
%00"001- 00°002'- 00°0 000 00°00Z°C 00°0 00’0 00'0 Auabunuo)
%00"00T- 00°002'Z- 00°0 000 00'002'e 000 aoo a0'o Asusbupuo) 01-66
Aousbunuon
0,1NOD uoRensiuupy / 1NJWNYIA0D TY¥aNID 0T-0T :Aid/Adag
9% abueyn  § abueyd [emug alA 1ebpng [eny 3ebpng [enpy

png ung png 4in) L102 9102 910¢ ST0¢ ST0¢C ¥10¢
SAbay NUT  sA bay uug :

osuadxg
€ 9bed Wd 90:T
9102/£0/10 | Hoday 32bpng woisn) pleypesy



%91 00°0f 00°52¢ ¥£'19 00581 ¥5'89E 00°'SZY 9716 NOLLVY LSININGY
%00’ 000 0005 00°'sk 00°0S 00°0 00001 060 SAINTUIINOD B ONINIVHL 08-0T
%00 00°0 00°0S bL91 0008 16/ 00°0ST 076 39V1504d 09-0T
%00° 000 00°0S 000 00°0S sy 00'0s 66°TE SATddnS 321440 SS-0T
%00°00T 00°SZ 00'SC 000 000 00°5Z 000 000 SAIHSUIAGIWAW S+-0T
%00'00T 00°s2 00's2 000 000 {967 000 6C'1¢ suopeAqnd 0F-0T
%00°00T- 00'0T- 000 000 00°0T 000 ao'os 000 STYNNYIW SE-0T
%0g" 00°0 00'se 000 00°SZ PE'BHT 0054 8T'SHT ONISILHIAQY OT-0T
NOLLVYISINIWAY
JUBLWS2I0UT AP0 / INTWNYTAOD TvHANID 0£-0T :Aidfdeq
%Z8 9T 00°009°E 00°000'sZ POLHHTT 00°00%'TZ 6£°86T'9Z 00°S£6°TE 62'SES/T Bussassy
ANIVIW
B NOLLVY340
%6T T 00°00T 00°008 14264 007002 55°089 00°00Z 0T899 SAVM 2Iand
%6 HT 00°00T 00°008 14164 00°00/ §5°089 00°00< 07°899 S3DTAYIS 1OVHINOD 01-08
INI¥IW 8 NOLLYY3dO SAYM DI1dnd
SIDIAYIS
%00°0¢ 00°00S°E 00°000'12 1/°869°6 00°005°21T ST'Z6EYE 0000082 19'v/8°€T LIOVYINQD
%60'6 00'00S 000000 $1965'S 00°005'S S9'62E'S £0°00S'S [9¥ET'S 1d0ddNS W3LNdIWQD S2-08
%0052 00°'00D'E 00°000°ST £ST0T'Y 00°000'ZT 0579061 0000572 00°05/°81 L1NIOV ONISSISSY 0T-05
SADIAYIS 1OVHINGD
%00° 000 007002 29'056 00'002'€ 60°921°T 00°S£2°E 75°766'C NOLLYHISINIWAY
Sd33a
%00° 000 00°05T 00°0 00°05T POITT 00002 85°0€T 40 AYLSI9TY - ONIQHODTY SL-0T
%00 000 00°000'T 79055 00°000°T 82°/66 00°000°T 16°'8€6 A9Y1S0d 09-0T
%00° 000 00°08 0070 00°0S 00’0 00°'SL €9€L SArddNS 331440 S5-0T
%00 000 00000 000 £0°000°2 JAVAS 00°000°Z 0Z'EH8'T SuoRedlignd Ot-0T
NOLLVY ISINIWAY
Buissassy / INIWNUIAOD TvdIN3D 0Z-0T :MQAdeg
% obueyy ¢ sbueyd [eniux ala 1ebpng [en1oy 19bpng [enoy
png .unj png N3 LTOC 910¢ 910¢ S10C STOC +10¢
sAbay yur  sa bay uug
Isuadx3y
i abed Wd 90:T
9102/£0/10 Hodoy 106png wozsn) paypeay



%00 000 00°00T 00'0 00°00T 0001 00°00T 000 SADINTHIINOD B ONINIVYL 08-01
%00’ 000 0005 000 00°0S 86°01 00°0S 000 $3NddNS 301440 §5-01
%00°00T- 00°05- 000 000 000§ 00°0 00°0% 00'/ "JSIM 0S-0T
%00°007 00°0S 00°0S 000 00'0 00°0 000 00°0E STVNNYIN SE-0T
%00 000 00°00T 08'T2 00°00T 000 00"00T 00°0 ONISILY3IAQY 0T-0T
NOLLVH1SINIWGAY
JONYNILNIVIN TYdIDINNW / INFWNYFAOD TVdINTD 0S-0T :AigAdag
%00°09- 00°005'T- 00°000'T 000 00'005°C 000 00'000°1 00'0b2'2 saupunog
1INV
¥ NOLLYH3dO
%00"09- 00'005°T- 00°000'T 000 00'00S°2 00'0 00°000°T 00°0¥2'e SAVM DI19Nnd
%00°09- 00°005°T- 00°000°T 000 00°00S°Z 00'0 00'000°T 000V’ SIDIAYAS LOVHINQD 01-08
INIVIA 8 NOLLYH3dO SAVM 2I18Nd
saUpunog / INJWNYIACD TWdIN3D 0F-0T :Mafdag
%L1 00°10S 00°/¥2'62 9/°519'¢1 00°9%/'8¢C £9°ER0'LT 00'SPL'TE P ZE9'6T JuswsdIojug |pos
%00" 000 00'0 00'0 00'0 00'0 000 000 SALLTILLN
SALLITLLN
%/6'T 00" HbS 00'20T'8C TTEE0'ST 008552 P PIL'ST 00°0zE'0T $6°080°8T TINNOSYHA
%00 00'0 00'0 000 00'0 05'208T 00'000'€ 05" /14'1 dwsl-sebep 0/-0¢
%I0T 007505 00'0#9'sZ POERET 00°SET'ST WIETIT 007005°ST 6/7TT6'PT SADYM 09-07
%00’ 000 00005 95°595 007005 98'¢1S 00°00b 19'/91 IV NIN 0£-0¢
%E0'T 00'6¢ 00°Z96'T TT'820°T 00°€Z6'T 9'79/'T 00°0Z+'T YOELT'T VJId 02-0¢
TANNOSH3d
%878 00°€8- 00'0Z6 16°02S 00°£00°T SLT00F'T 00°000°T £2°09C°T JINVENSNI
O%RE 007 00525 75'642 00°€2S T2'6L% 00'00b £0'bE dIWOD SHINHOM 08-ST
YTl LT- 00's8- 00°G6€ 6E'THE 00°08% $9°126 00'009 02956 INIWACTAWANN 09-ST
JFONVHNSNI
Q.LNOD JusWwadioju] apod / INJWNYIACD TVdINTD 0£-0T :AQ/adag
% abueyy  §sbuey) Jeniu1 adlA 1ebpng [enpy 196png [enpy
png AJnD png an L10C 910¢ 910¢ STOC ST10¢ +102
sA bay Jug sA bay yu
osuadxgy
G abeyd Wd 90T
9102/£0/10 Hoday yebpng wojsn) PlRUpEsy



%00° 000 00°00S LETSk 00°005 06°b0E 000527 S0°01 ST100L 05-59
LNIWIDY Y LNININD3
INTYIW “dIvd3d
%00°SZ 00°00¢ 00°000'T g5t 00°008 ZE'59E 00°00% (8°0EF 'NOLLYHIdO dIN0A
%00 000 00°0ST €451 00°0ST 00D 00°0ST ¥8'96 JeaD) SAIDDJ0N [eUCSIad /-09
%HEEEET 00°00T 0005 0u'0 00°051 £2°THE 00°0ST 6'€CT uay/feses uawdinby 09-09
%00 000 00°005 000 00°005 6622 00°00T ¥5°07Z e g Jeday s|001 0409
INIVIN “dIvdad ‘NOLLVYIHO dIN03
%05 LE- 00°08T- 00°00€ 00°09T 0008t 00°08b 0008 0008 S3LLTIILN
%05 LE- 00°0891- 00°00€ 00097 00°08% 0008t 00708 00°08% INOHd 1132 0T-0F
SALLILLN
%ES'9- 00565 00°S/H'15 96'0£E'ST 00°0£0°5S L5PBLSy 00°'TH0'SS 97'95F1S TANNOSHd
%00° 000 00°00€ 000 00°00€ 00°00E 00°00€ 8T'4HC IINYMOTIV ONIHLOTD 06-02
%00°00T- 00°GEE- 00'0 £6'18 00°SEE LE°8TE 00°2S€ 8/H0€ NY1d NOILDT10dd IWOINI §9-02
YT T- 00'SHO'T- 00'555'sy S6'76Z°CT 000099t ¥8'Eb9'8E 00°698"/t 15°600°ckh SIOVM 09-02
%18 LF 00°558'T- 00'SZ0'¢ 8059 00°088°c 88'99/'7 00'SESZ By /TTE INIWIHLLIY 0F-0C
%00° 00°0 000 gc€8 000 05'9%T 00°sZT 66 A9VIIW 0£-02
%OT'6- 00°09¢- 00°S6S'E TRt 00°S56°E 86'609'c 00°098°c [8°(96°E VYOI 02-02
TINNOSE3d
%BEET 005222 00'SEZ8T 8T'6EH'E 00°0Z0'9T [T TS0bT 00°SHE'ET PO 8EET JONVUNSNI
%90'8 00°0S2 007058'E 81'S£6 00°00T°E 878687 00'020'E 9£'8bT'E dWOD SHIHOM 08-G1
%ET 6E- 00°09¢- 00095 85'80% 00°026 15°+98 00564 00969 INIWAOTEWANN 09-ST
%00"00T 00°S£6 00°5£6 00'0 a0'o 000 00'0 i) LNIWISINGWIFY HLTVAH §2-ST
%/9'TT Q0604 00°00%°ET 2's60'T 00°0002T 86'£87'07 00°0ET'0T 87'¥86°0T JONVINSNI HLTY3H 02-51
FONVANSNI
%00° 000 00°00€ 08°THT 00°00€ 8607 00°00€ 00°2E NOLLYY LSININGQY
AANGD
FONYNILNIVIN TYdDINNW / INTWNAIIAOD TWHINID 05-0T :AldAadeq
% 2bueyy  $sbueyd |emu] alA ¥9bpng [en3oy 3ebpng [enyoy
png unD png und L10T 910¢ 910z S10¢ §10¢ p10z
sabay yur  sA bay wug
asuadx3y
9 abed Wd 90:T
9T0¢/L0/T0 Hoday 3°bpng woisn) PlRHpesy



INIIWNYHIAOD

%eT'T Q0°Z5T'S 00"EET' VI 94°9Z£'81Z 0092065 ££°0/5'6kt 00°0Z5 05k 786002k TvdaN3D
%00' 000 000051 00°0 0D"005'T 9T°Z5H'T 00°005°% £9'698 souegsissy buijesy
%00 000 00°005°T 000 007005'T 9TTSH'T 00°005'T £9'688 SILLTTILN
%00" Q0o 00°005°T 000 00°005°T 91751 00°005°T £8°'688 ONLLY3H 09-0F
: SATLTIIN
aouelsissy BunesH / INJWNYIA0D Tvd3NAD 0£-0T :agAdeg
Buiuueld
%00 oo 000052 000 00°005'Z 000 0070052 000 1 Bunup, JueIn
%00° 00°0 00°005°2 000 00°0052 000 0070052 00°0 NOLLYHISINIWAY
%00 000 00005 000 00°00S'Z 000 0070052 000 "SI 06-0T
NOLLYVYLSINIWQY
Buiuueld 8 Bunua Wels / INJWNYIACD TWdaNID 09-0T Aafdeg
IONVNILNIVIN
YS0"h- 00°SED'E- 00'0£8'14 H0°0H9'61 00°S06'b£ 0Z"6+0'T9 00°99%°02 BT L9 TVAIDINNIW
9%00°00T- 00'589'T- 000 00'0 00°S89'T 000 00’0 00°0 Auafunuo)
%00°007- 00°589'T- 000 000 005891 000 00'0 000 Auabuguod 01-56
AouaBunuon
%00" 000 00705 Q0o 00°05 99z 0005 000 W0 BNITINg
%00" 000 0005 000 00°05 99°7h 0008 000 S3r1ddNS 0/-07
W80 DNIQTINg
INIWIDVIdIY
%00" 000 00005 (£°25F 00°00S 05°H0E 00052 S0'0T INIWLINOI
a.NOD
TINYNILNIVIN WAIDINAW / LINTWNHIA0D TVHIANID 0S-0T :AIQfdag
% obueyy  $ abueyd [eul alA 3ebpng [enjoy 19bpng [enpy
png 1) png AN LTOC 910¢ 910¢ ST10¢ ST0e $10¢
sabay yur  sa bay g
asuadxy
£ 9bed Wd 90:T
9102/£0/10 Hoday 30bpng woysn) playpesy



%00" 00°0 00601 80°66 00°00T 82'96 0056 000 1S3404/Wdv4 NMOL 09-55
SADIAYAS ALINNIWWOD
%00" 000 00'59¢ 0p'E 00°S9€ I8'85/ 00°590° 85°520°T NOLLVYLSINEANQY
%00" 000 00°001 Ob'E 00°00T 887 00°05 76°0 A9Y1S0d 09-0T
%00" 000 00'001 000 00°00T 00°0 000 61°LT SAT1ddNS 301440 SS-0T
%00" 000 00°0 000 000 00'9L 000 000 "JSIN 05-0T
%00 00°0 00°S9T 000 00°59T 00591 00°S9T 00°591 SAIHSHALWAN SH-0T
%00° 000 000 000 000 6615 00°0S8 Lb'TH8 suopedlignd 00T
NOLLYY LSININGY
S2IWLUOD UOREAIdSUO) [ SNOISSIIWWOD B SQUV0d 0£-ST :AlQ/deg
%00’ 000 00"20% 000 00720 8e'e 00°£09 00°£2€ s|eaddy yo pleog
%00 000 00°£07 000 00201 000 00'£01 107207 TANNOSYH3d
%00 000 00201 000 00207 000 00207 9L ¥6 SADYM 09-02
%00 000 00°s 00°0 00°S 000 00°S STl VDI 02-0¢2
TANNOSH3d
%00 000 000 000 000 00°0 000 v0'9 IONVUNSNI
%00 000 000 000 000 00°0 000 50 dIWOD SYIIYOM 08-ST
%00" 000 000 00°0 000 000 00’0 69 INIWACTAIHINN 09-ST
IONVINSNI
%00° 000 00"00E 000 - 00°00E geE 00°00S G6'8T¢ NOLLYHISINIWNQAY
%00" 000 00°00T 000 00°00T 00°0 00°001 00’08 STIONTHIINOD ¥ ONINIVHL 08-0T
%00" 000 0005 000 00705 000 00°00T 8207 J5V1S0d 09-0T
%00’ 000 0005 000 00°05 00 0005 S6'€Z SAI1ddNS 301440 §5-0T
%00’ 000 000 000 000 8ee 000 Z0HE SUONEJIGNd Ob-0T
%00" 000 00°00T 000 00001 000 00°0SZ 0Z'06 ONISLLYAAAY 0T-0T
NOLLYY LSINIWGY
sleaddy Jo pieog / SNOISSIWWOD 8 STUV0d 0T-5T :AlQAdaq
% abueyy ¢ abueyd [eur aLa 1°6png [en1oy 1ebpng [enpy
png unp png un) L102 9102 910¢ ST0Z ST0Z »102
sAbayuup  sa bay uug
asuadxa
g abed Wd 90:T
9102/£0/10 Hoday 196png woisn) plelpesy



%00" 00°0 00"00€ 766 00°00€ 000 00°00€ 96°G/ SAriddNS 321440 S5-0T
%00 000 00°0ST 000 00°0ST ££°0§ 00°0ST SLTHT suopedNqnd 0b-01
%00 000 00°005 89'0S¢ 007005 P9'TTS 00°005 $0"59L ONISILYIAAY 0T-0T
‘ NOILVYLISINIWGY
paeog Buiuueld / SNOISSIWIWOD @ SQYv0d 04-GT :AlQ/Adag
SILLWIDD
%00 000 00°59€’F 61°4CS 00'S9L’y 89°SeH'E 00°'09'S wW10L'T uoneAlasuUo))
_ ANIVIN
¥ NOLLYd3dO
%00" 00°0 00'SZES | P4 00SEE'E £5°08KC 00°009°€ 05'872 SAYM DIand
%00° 000 000 000 000 00°808 0070027 000 SATTdJNS/SNOIS 08-08
%00" o0Q 00°52/'T |Vl 44 00°S2L'T £52LET 0000+ 05°87¢ SIVIYIALVIN Ot-08
%00" 000 00°009'T 000 00°009'T 00°00 000 000 SADIAYAS 1OVIINOD 0T-08
INIVIN 8 NOLLYY340 SAVM DIdnd
%00° 000 00°0 00°0 000 00'0 00°000'T 00°0ET’T WRO INIATINd
600" 000 000 00°0 000 00'0 00°000°T 00'0ET'T SANNQHD 0102
W80 ONIaTNg
ANFWIOVIdTY
%00" 000 00'5/S 000 00°S/S 00'0 000 9g'/1€ AINIWAIND3
%00° 00'0 00'5£5 000 00°SLS 00°0 00°0 9L LTE ANTFWAINDI WLIdVYD 0£-59
ANIFWIDVTdIY INTFWAINOT
ANIVI “dIVdTd
%00° 000 00°0 000 00°0 00°06 00°0 00°0 ‘NOLLYY3d0 d1nd3
%00" 00°0 000 000 000 00°06 00'0 00°0 aowppeqd 55-09
INIVIN “dI¥dTd ‘NOLLYYIdO dIND3
SADINYIS
%00 0070 00 oot 8066 007001 8296 . 00's6e 0070 ALINNWWOD
a.1NOD
SAMUWILIOY UoNBAISSUOD [ SNOISSIWIWOD B SAUV0d 0£-ST :AdAdeg
% obueyy ¢ sbueyd [eriu] dlA 196png [enpy 3e6png [en]oy
png 1n) png 1n) 102 9T0C 9102 STOZ ST0Z $102
sA bay U sA bay 1ug
asuadx3
& abeq Wd 90:T
9102/£0/10 Hoday 3obpng wo3sn) plapeay



SNOISSIWWGD

%56 00°¢L- 00°E4¥'L 65°692'T 00°SHS'L 67 8bT'y 000¥1'6 £6'0£9°G B SAUvOd
%09°Z- 00°ZL- 00°T0L'T OFBEL 00ELL'E 618 00°cLL'e 6709 pseog Buluueiq
%HERE- 00°95- DO S0b'T STHOT 00 TOF'T TS0z 00 1917 99°9/€'T TANNOSHAd
%8p'L- 00°86- 00°Z12'T [ T 00°0TE"T #9061 00°0TE'T £9'9/7T SIOVM 09-02
%00'001 000§ 00'0S 000 000 00'0 000 000 INIWIHLLTY 002
%0g 00°0 00°0S 00°0 00°0S 00°0 0005 000 JOVATIN 0£-02
%6 £- 008 0056 0881 00°'10T 8SHT 00° 10T £8'/6 Y2I4 02-02
T3ANNOSH3d
%I8'St- 0091- 009p 19°TF 00z w8 0029 b6/ FONVENSNI
%6 T 00°T- 009 96°C 'L 8770 00°L a¥'s dINOD SYINUOM 08-5T
Yl LT 00°ST- 000 598 00's5 £9°/ 00°S5 90/ INIWAOTIWANN 09-ST.
IDONVINSNI
%00 000 000521 +5'79 007052 08'509 00°0SZ'T LEWT'T NOLLYY1SININGY
%00" 000 00°00¢ oo0 0000z 000 00002 000 SIONTHIINOD '8 ONINIVL 08-0T
%00 000 00°00T ¥61 00°001 s 00°00T 79e9 39V1S0d 09-0T
Q.LNOD pJeog Buiuueld / SNOISSIWWOD 8 SQ4v0d 0461 :AidAdag
% dbueyy ¢ abueyd ey alA wbpng [enoy 3ebpng [enyoy
png uno png unD L1102 9102 910¢ 510¢ ST02 ¥102
sabay yur  sabayaug
asuadx3y
01 abed Id 90:T
910Z/£0/10 Hoday 326png wojsn) pepesy



%00° 000 000 000 000 00'0 00052 STETT SADIAYSS LOVYLINOD 0T1-08
LNIVIN 8 NOLLVYId0O SAVM DI1dnNd
%S L- 00'05T- 00°008°T ¥8H0E 00°010°Z 9E"b66 00°010"2 86'TEL'T W20 ONIGTING
%00 00°0 00'002 000 00°00Z 06'vTt 00002 798¢ 53I1ddNS 0£-0/
%00" 000 00°000'T P8I 00°000°7 ab'605 0070007 979802 IDONYNILNIVIN 09-0L
%00°09- 00°08T- 00°00T 00°0 00052 00°0 007052 00°0 SANNOYD 0F-0/
%00° 000 00'002 000 00°00Z 00°0 007002 000 IDONYNILNIVIW FDVNUND 0£-0L
%00° 000 00'09¢ 00°08T 00°09€ 00'09¢ 00°09¢ 00°09€ WIVIVY 0T-0L
W20 9ONIaTIng
2496°8- 0005/~ 00'0Z9°L 90°199°2 00'0/£'8 90°Tk59 000/£'8 1E£°86L°9 SALLTIILN
%00' 000 00°0Z1 00709 00°021T 00821 00°02T 00°861 ALV 06-0F
%606 00°005- 00'000°S B 26T 00°005°S LE9ET' 00°005'S 6T 'L HNILVAH 09-0F
%60'6- 00'0Sz- 00°005° ZREOP'T 0005822 69°LL2'T 00'058L'T 70°L0ET 21410373 ge-0F
SALLTILLN
%00 000 00°96C 61'902 00°962 £2°05¢ 00'E2E 90'Z6T TINNOSYad
%00" 000 00'S/2 62'€61 00°5/2 SbZEeT 00'00€ 6E'8.T SIAOVM 09-02
%00" 000 00'1Z 06'ZT 00'12 8L7L1 00€Z L9'ET VI 02-02
TANNOSHAd
%00 000 00 89%T 002 1184 00°4T 80'81 JONVENSNI
%00 00'0 00'ET 76, 00°€T 16'0T 00°ST £6°2 dIWOD SUTHOM 08-9T
%00" 00'0 00'TT 9/'9 00'11 0£'6 0021 ST'OT INAWACTdWANN 09-51
%00 000 000 000 000 949'85 0070 000 IONVINSNI HLIVAH 0¢-ST
IDNVINSNI
%00 0070 00°0 00°0 00'0 00°0 000 00’08 NOLLVYLSININGY
%00" 000 00'0 000 000 000 00°0 00°08 “JSIW 05-0T
NOLLVYISINIWNGY
uonels a4 / W80 SONIATING NMOL 01-0z :md/Adsq
% 2bueyd $ abueyd |enmul aia 10bpng lenpy 196png [enpy
png uno png unD L102 910¢ 9102 ST0T ST0Z ¥10T
sabayur  sabsyuur
asuadx3y
11 obed Wd 90:1
9102Z/L0/10 Hoday 396png woisn) PlRYpEaY




%00° 000 00°00t 000 0000t 80°690C 00 00+ 00°DET AINYNILNIVIN IDVYNANL 0E-0L

%00°0¢- 00°00¢- 00°002°T 00°SZT'T 0070051 00°S60°T 00'005'T £6'580'T HOIVAATE O¢-0L
%00°05- 00°00¢- 00°00€ 000 007009 00o 00'009 CE68¢ Jojeisuel) 9T-0L
%£9°9T- 00°00T- 00005 0964y 007009 09°€0E 00°009 09°€DE WAY1Y 0T-0L
WSO SNIATING
INIWIDV 4
%00° 000 00°0 000 000 000 00’0 000 INIWLINDA
‘ INTWEOV AT INTWAINDT
%SS - 00°00S- 00700501 £0°562°C 00°000'TT 8K TSEDT 00°00S°2T PLVEF'TT S3LITIILN
%600° 000 00'000'9 £97958 00°000'0 £5°806'S 00°'008°/ 7E'E80'L ONLLYIH 0S-0b
%00°0T- 00°005- 00°005"% 9L 8EY'T 00°'000°S 16'20F'% 00°000's P ISE'Y DT 10373 0-0F
SILLOLLN
%R 0P 00°98T 00°9+9 TE'EES 00°09¢% 0Z'0F9 00'554 9Z°159 T3NNOSYId
%8T'TP 00'sLT 007009 6l /81 00°SZy 2465 00°00£ £6'+09 SADVYM 09-0Z
%EP L 00'1T 009 ¢SS 00°sE LS 00'SS £ YoId 02-02
‘ 713NNOSYad
Y%lEe 00’6 009 856y 00°LE ¥ott 00°€9 ¢0'09 JONVENSNI
%00°0F 00¢ 00°¢¢ ¥e'5e 00°02 68°4LC 00'sg ¥8'9¢ dINOD SHINHOM 08-ST
%8T'Ir 0oL 00¥e PEPT 00741 6L°E¢ 0082 8T'ee INIWAOTdIWANN 09-ST
2600° 000 000 000 000 95°89 000 000 JONVINSNI HLTYIH 02-5T
JONVHNSNI
%00 00’0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 NOLLYY1SINIWNAY
NOLLYYLSINIWGY
lIeH 2119 / W0 SONIQTING NMOL 07-0Z :Alg/idag
%18 00°006- 0070086 ££7981'E 00'00£0T b'598°L 00°086'07T 89'+88'6 uonels a1y
INIVW
8 NOLLYY3dO
%00 000 000 000 000 000 00°052 TR YA SAYM OIand
d,LNOD uonels a4 / W80 SONIATING NMOL 0T-02 :Aa/adag
% obueyy  §obueydy  jemul alA 16png lenypy 196png [enpy
png un) pngund /102 910¢ 9107 5102 ST0T b10z

sabayuuy  sAa boy g

asuadx3y
21 abeq Nd 90T
9102/£0/10 Hoday 19b6png wogsn) pIoypeay



%00 000 00"00T 00'0 00°00T SH'8E 00"00T 0Z'45 S3TddNS 0£-04
Y00 00°0 0070007 00°62T 00°000°7 99°pHE’S 00"000°TT ¥9°£92'S IONYNILNIVIN 09-0L
%00" 00°0 00°00T 000 00°00T 000 00007 000 SANNOYD 0F-0/
%00' 000 00002 00°0 00°00Z 000 00002 000 FONVNILNIVIW 3DVNUNA 0£-04
W0 ONIQTING
%00" 00°0 00°029'E 1£°106 00°029°c 98 T+ 00022 S2°658'E SIELTIILN
%00" 00"0 00°021 0009 00"0ZT 00°021 00021 00021 H3LVYM 06-0b
%00" 00'Q 000052 96°09% 0070052 60'6££T 00°00T'E 00°0b6'7 ONLLY3H 09-0F
%00 oy 000001 5/°08¢ 00°000'7 Virariy:] 000007 5166/ 10313 0£-0F
S3UTILN
%00° 000 00°'Ske ISPIE 00°Se +EOCT 00" LLE 157602 JANNOSYd
a0y 00°0 00°S7T SZ°007 00°SZ2 SELTT 00°0SE 65967 SIOYM 09-02
%00 00°0 00°07 9z ¥l 0002 66'8 00'L2 W61 VYOI 0Z-02
. TANNOSHA
9%50'61- 00+ 0041 00'97 00°1Z 61°01 00ZE (96T FINYINSNI
%lT Le- 00°¢- 00'g 558 0011 05°s 00°ZT ¥9'8 dWOD SYINHOM 08-ST
%00°01- 00°1- 00°6 A 00701 69F 00°ST €0°TT ANIWACTdWANN 09-ST
IONVINSNI
%00°05- 00"05- 00705 000 00°001 9T'9€€ 0005 00°0 NOLLYYLSINIWAY
%00"05- 00°05- 0005 00°0 00°001 9T°9g€ 0005 000 DNISILYIAQY 0T-0T
NOLLYYLSINIWQY
Aeaqri / W80 SONIAIING NMOL 0£-02 aafideg
Yot 00°08- 00°ZH0'8T 958695 00°ZZ1'8T 00°¥58'4T 00'8T8'1Z 0T'H69'/T - lIEH 2D
%0P'E 00°522 00'0589 $9°025°C 00°S79'9 80'25£'9 00°005'8 80°2b5°S W80 ONIQTING
%0521 0005 00'0S¥ 000 00°00% v Th a0 oot £ TS SATiddNS 0£-07
Y%SF LT 00°5£E 00°005'7 #0916 005217 06°66€'T 000002 £6'9¥2'E FONVNILNIVIN 09-0£
%00°0S 00°00S 0070057 000 00°000°T 95°69%'T 00°000°€ 16°0b SANNOYD D407
A ANOD lI_H 219 / W80 SONIANING NMOL 02-02 :Akl/idsq
9% abueyny  § abuey) leur alh 39bpng [enoy 1°bpng [eny
png 1o png 4n) L10¢ 9102 9107 ST02Z ST0C ¥102
SAboy Ul sA boy Jug
asuadx3y
€T abed Wd 90:T
9102/£0/10 Hoday 19bpng woisn) plalpeay



SIS 00°IS0'Y 00'08E'90S  09'BEL'6ZZ  00'6ZE'ZTOS  CT'ETZ'68F  O0'LED'OTS  65°08K'I6Y isjejo] asuadxy
WR0
%0672 00°E0°T- 00°P/9'FE SSOFT'0T 00°802°SE 0E'r68'se 00°2££°05 ¥8'6€8'8E SONIGTING NMOL
Buip|ing
%00" 000 00°00S'T 00'0 00°005'T TLLLS 00°005'T 620SET 20UBUUIEW
INIVIN
3 NOLLVY3JO
%00" 00'0 000 ) 00°0 00°0 a0'o 62°0SET SAVM DI14nd
%00° 000 000 Q00 00°0 00°0 000 62°0SE'T STOIAYAS IDVHINOD 01-08
ANIVI '8 NOLLVY3dO SAYM DI1and
%00" 000 0070057 000 00°D0S°T ZLLLS 00'005'T 000 W20 DNEIA1ING
%00" 000 00°00S'T 000 00°005'T 2L 4LS 00'005°T 00°0 FONYNILNIVIN 09-0L
W80 ONIQTING
%00" 00'0 00°0 00°0 000 000 00°0 000 SANLTIILN
SILLIILLN
Buip|ing asueusiuel / WSO SONIQTING NMOL 0F-02 AigAdag
%00°T- 00°F5- 00°Cee’s 1921 00°98€'S 91°/658°6 00'6£0°9T LL0T6'6 Aleiqr
%00" 000 00°00+'T 00°6Z1 00°00H'T TT°E8E’S 00°00+'11 b8°1Z8'S W20 ONIATING
A.INOD Aeign / W0 SONIATING NMOL 0£-02 :adfAdaq
o @bueyd  § =bueyd [eRu] alA 1ebpng [enpy 1°6png [enpy
png un) png .unD 10T 9107 9107 ST0C S107 b0z
shboy uf  sa bay jug
asuadx3a
$1 abed Wd 90:T
9102/L0/10 Joday 196png wojsn) pleYpeESy



